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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E Rl wm KA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Our Group is principally engaged in the money lending business
specialising in providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong under
the MLO. Mortgage loan business is our core business under our well-
known and highly recognised brand name “Hong Kong Finance”. We
also provide unsecured personal loan products to property owners so as
to diversify ourselves in different money lending market segments and to
enhance our overall interest margin.

Mortgage loan business remained as the major source of the Group’s
revenue, contributing approximately 66.6% to the Group’s revenue
during the current year. Interest income generated from the mortgage
loan business decreased by 6.8% to HK$102.2 million during the current
year. The gross mortgage loan portfolio was increased to HK$766.1
million as at 31 March 2022 amid the subdued economic environment
during the current year. As for our unsecured personal loan business, the
interest income increased by 12.0% to HK$51.3 million, contributing to
about 33.4% of our Group’s revenue for the current year. As at 31 March
2022, our gross personal loan portfolio was HK$186.3 million.

The pandemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) continued
to impact the global economy. Although Hong Kong economy has
experienced steady recovery in 2021, the new fifth wave of COVID-19
has significantly battered the Hong Kong economy which severely
affected business activities from all walks of life in the first quarter of
2022. In addition to the threat from the local pandemic situation, the
military conflict between Russia and Ukraine and the rapid surge of
Fed interest rate to cope with the inflation hike in the U.S. have brought
further uncertainties and hurdles to the global economy. The political
tension between China and U.S. has persistently and severely impacted
the economy in China and Hong Kong in the current year. Coupled with
the economic uncertainties and great challenges, we have adopted
prudent and cautious approaches such as implementing stringent credit
policy, having strict control on loan-to-value ratio, etc. which persistently
supported our Group in maintaining our loan portfolio and generating
stable interest income during the year. We also continued to rebalance
our product-mix into personal loan products so as to maintain our overall
net interest margin in the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R R L AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our interest income from money lending business of providing property
mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong Kong slightly decreased
by HK$2.0 million or 1.3% from HK$155.5 million for the last year to
HK$153.5 million for the current year, and such decrease was mainly
derived from the decrease in our interest income from our mortgage loan
business, netting of the increase in our interest income from our personal
loan business.

Interest income from our mortgage loan business decreased by HK$7.5
million or 6.8% from HK$109.7 million for the last year to HK$102.2
million for the current year, whereas the interest income from our personal
loan business increased by HK$5.5 million or 12.0% from HK$45.8
million for the last year to HK$51.3 million for the current year.

Other income

We have recorded other income of HK$1.4 million (2021: HK$3.9 million)
during the current year. This year’s other income mainly represented the
rental income from investment properties amounting to HK$1.3 million.
Last year’s other income mainly comprised of management service fee
income of HK$1.7 million and the government grant of HK$1.8 million.

Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation of investment
properties

During the current year, our Group recorded gains of HK$9.0 million
(2021: losses of HK$1.0 million) on the revaluation of our investment
properties. The increase was mainly derived from the new acquisition of
investment properties during the year. Further details of such acquisition
have been set out in the Company’s announcement dated 22 October
2021.

Provision for/(reversal of) impairment and write-off of loans
receivable, net

We have recorded a provision for impairment and write-off of loans and
interest receivables of HK$6.5 million for the year (2021: a reversal of the
provision of HK$2.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R AR L AT

Below is the breakdown of provision for/(reversal of) impairment and
write-off of loans receivable incurred from property mortgage loans and
personal loans during the year and the prior year:

ATHBAFER EFEYEZIBERRILA
BERMELRKETORERE (BE) K
B2 DM

Property

mortgage loans
Year ended 31 March

Personal loans
Year ended 31 March

YMERBER AAER
BEZ3H31BLEE BEZ3A31HLEEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 & 20214 2022 F 20214
HK$ million HK$ million ~ HKS$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEET
Provision for/(reversal of) FEWE FOR B,
impairment on loans (#E)
receivable (1.4) (4.8) 1.9 (0.39)
Write-off of loans receivable JE B SR M 8 5.2 2.6 0.8 0.1
3.8 2.2) 2.7 0.2)
Administrative expenses THEX

We have incurred administrative expenses of HK$53.1 million for
the current year (2021: HK$47.3 million), which mainly comprised of
employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing expenses, legal
and professorial fees, depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and other miscellaneous expenses. The increase in the administration
expenses by HK$5.8 million or 12.3% was mainly due to the stamp
duty of HK$2.2 million incurred for the new acquisition of the investment
properties as well as the increase in our headcounts for the expansion
of our personal loans business which further pushed up the employee
benefit expenses of the Group during the year.

Finance costs

We have incurred finance costs of HK$21.1 million for the current year
(2021: HK$25.7 million), which mainly comprised of interest on interest
bearing bank and other borrowings, amount due to a fellow subsidiary
and issuance of bonds. The decrease in the finance costs by HK$4.6
million or 17.9% was mainly attributable to the decrease in the utilisation
of bank borrowings during the current year. It is our Group’s policy to
prioritise the utilisation of our available facilities which offer the lowest
finance cost to our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Net interest margin

The net interest margin of our money lending business was maintained at
14.9% for the current year (2021: 14.9%). Our product-mix to unsecured
personal loan products for property owners helped for maintaining the
overall net interest margin at a relatively higher level.

Profit and total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, our profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of our Company achieved HK$70.6 million for
the current year as compared to HK$73.2 million for the last year,
representing a decrease of 3.6%.

LIQUIDITY AND SOURCES OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the current year, our Group’s operations and capital requirements
were financed principally through retained earnings, loans or advances
from our fellow subsidiary, Tin Ching Industrial, as well as banks and other
borrowings. Based on our current and anticipated levels of operations,
barring unforeseeable market conditions, our future operations and
capital requirements will be financed through loans from banks or other
financial institutions that are independent third parties, retained earnings
and our share capital. We had no significant commitments for capital
expenditure as at 31 March 2022.

The Group recorded net current assets of HK$244.7 million as at 31
March 2022 (2021: HK$286.7 million).

As at 31 March 2022, cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$24.9
million (2021: HK$80.0 million); amount due to a fellow subsidiary
amounted to HK$109.7 million (2021: HK$128.8 million); interest bearing
bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$293.8 million (2021:
HK$177.1 million), and bonds amounted to HK$22.9 million (2021:
HK$100.8 million).

During the current year, all interest bearing bank borrowings were
repayable on demand and were secured by our Group’s investment
properties, land and buildings, certain properties mortgaged to our
subsidiary, and corporate guarantee of our Company. The amounts due
to a fellow subsidiary and other borrowings were unsecured, interest
bearing with fixed term of repayment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the current year, none of our banking facilities were subject to
any covenants relating to financial ratio requirements or any material
covenants that restrict our Group to undertake additional debt or equity
financing. As at 31 March 2022, our unutilised banking facilities and
other unutilised facility available to our Group for drawdown amounted
to HK$192.6 million and HK$90.3 million, respectively. It is our Group’s
policy to prioritise the utilisation of our available facilities which offer the
lowest finance cost to our Group.

During the current year, our bonds were subject to covenants relating to
financial ratio requirements, such as interest coverage ratio, current ratio
and debt to equity ratio.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The following table sets forth the key financial ratios of our Group during
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 respectively:

RAFE  RITRHERE S R EP L L
EE%ZEH% SRR AN & B AT REIME
BB AR E 2 EMEREH - R20224F 3
A31H At AEBERBRABARITHE
NEMARBHERRE 5 BIA 192,600,000 7% 7T &
90,300,000 - AEB 2 BRER AELEH A
REFBRFAESZERERER ATHHARME -

RAEE  EHF
HER - WA SE
MRS % o

FEMBLER
TREYI A EE S B R E 22022 F [ 2021
FIRABIBILFEZFENBLL X

HEUBHERETEE R
=X //lu@JttT&{E ;I'%ﬁT

As at 31 March

MW3831H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Current ratio ® mENELEM 1.56 1.72
Gearing ratio @ BELEX® 0.55 0.48

For the year ended

31 March
HE3A31HLLEE
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
Net interest margin ratio @ FEELLERO 14.9% 14.9%
Return on equity ratio @ & NEIE & 9.6% 10.8%
Interest coverage ratio © MEBEXO 4.5 times & 4.5 times =

Notes:

©] Current ratio was calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as at the
respective year-end date.

] Gearing ratio was calculated by dividing net debts (being the total interest bearing bank
and other borrowings, amount due to a fellow subsidiary and the bonds, less cash and
cash equivalents) by total equity as at the respective year-end date.

®)] Net interest margin ratio was calculated by dividing net interest income (being the
interest income net of finance costs) by the monthly average balance of mortgage loan
receivables at the respective year-end date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE TR A

(4 Return on equity ratio was calculated by dividing profit and total comprehensive income
for year attributable to owners of the Company by the total equity as at the respective
year-end date.

(5) Interest coverage ratio was calculated by dividing profit before finance costs and income
tax expenses (excluding fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties) by the
finance costs for the corresponding year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Our Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies
during the current year.

IMPORTANT EVENTS OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2022, on 30 May 2022, at
a cash consideration of HK$14.0 million, the Group entered into an
agreement to acquire 50% equity interest in a company whose principal
asset comprises certain vessels. Further details of which have been set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 30 May 2022 and 2 June
2022.

Other than set forth above, our Group did not have other important
events affecting our Company or our subsidiaries since year ended 31
March 2022 and up to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MONEY LENDERS ORDINANCE

Our Group is required to and has, at all times, strictly complied with all
relevant laws and regulations. In the opinion of our Directors, in addition
to the Listing Rules, Stock Exchange, the MLO constituted a significant
influence on our Group’s money lending business during the current year.

The MLO is the principal ordinance which governs the money lending
business in Hong Kong. Our money lending business has been
conducted through the subsidiaries of our Company. During the current
year, we did not receive any objection from and was not investigated by
the Registrar of Money Lenders nor the Commissioner of Police regarding
the renewal of the money lenders licence.

To the best of our knowledge, our Group has complied with the MLO in
all material aspects, and that our Directors are not aware of any matters
that might come to their attention that our money lenders licence would
be suspended, terminated or would not be renewed in foreseeable
future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CUSTOMERS

During the current year, our customers comprised individuals and
corporations in Hong Kong and were all independent third parties
(within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), and were not
connected persons or senior management of our Group.

During the current year, our top five customers (as determined by interest
income generated) accounted for approximately 7.6% (2021: 9.6%)
of our total revenue, and our single largest customer accounted for
approximately 2.2% (2021: 2.2%) of our total revenue.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, our Group employed 43 (2021: 35) full time
employees. The total staff costs of our Group for the year were HK$25.3
million (2021: HK$22.1 million).

Our Group adopts a remuneration policy covering the position, duties
and performance of our employees. The remuneration of our employees
include salary, overtime allowance, bonus and various subsidies. We
conduct performance appraisal on an annual basis. Our Company
has also adopted the share option scheme on 4 September 20183,
the purpose of which is to provide incentives to our employees who
made contributions to our Group with a view to motivating them and/or
attracting and retaining them for the long term growth of our Group. No
share options were granted or outstanding during the year end 31 March
2022,

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, our land and buildings of HK$70.0 million (2021:
HK$71.9 million), our investment properties of HK$113.3 million (2021:
HK$76.4 million) and certain properties mortgaged to our subsidiary
with aggregate fair values of these properties of approximately HK$94.5
million (2021: HK$237.3 million) were secured for the Group’s bank
borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the current year, the business activities of our Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Our Directors did not consider our
Group was exposed to any significant foreign exchange risks. Our Group
did not use derivative financial instruments to hedge against the volatility
associated with foreign currency transactions and other financial assets
and liabilities arising in the ordinary course of business.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, our Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2021: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any capital commitments as at 31 March 2022
(2021 Nil).

OUTLOOK

The aftermath of the fifth wave of the epidemic has still imposed influence
on the recovery of Hong Kong economy and such recovery will depend
on the development of the pandemic situation, whether there would be
a further sixth (and so forth) wave of the epidemic, and the efficiency
of recovery strategies implemented by the Hong Kong Government.
The development of the military conflict between Russia and Ukraine
and the surge of Fed interest rate and inflation hike in the U.S. will
continue to bring uncertainties and hurdles to the global economy. It
is also expected that the political tension between China and U.S. will
not be eased and will persistently impact the economy in China and
Hong Kong in forthcoming periods. The beginning of tapering in U.S.
may further creates challenges to the global economy. We expect these
factors will continue to affect our loan product demand and our business
operations for the coming financial years. The Group expects the global
economy and Hong Kong economic outlook will remain sluggish, which
would certainly pose persistent challenges and uncertainties to both our
mortgage loan and personal loan products.

Despite the difficulties and challenges ahead, our Group will continue
to leverage our professionalism and solid experience in our money
lending business. We shall persistently implement cautious and prudent
measures, instantly and effectively review and tighten our credit policies,
and increase the proportion of our business with high net-worth
customers. We shall also rebalance our product-mix, especially in our
personal loan products where we shall put more focus on personal
loans with property owners. By leveraging our professionalism, the
highly recognised brand name “Hong Kong Finance” and our profound
experience in the money lending business, we are confident to put
ourselves in a more stable and solid position in the money lending
industry, and we shall prepare ourselves to produce sound and fruitful
operating and financial results again once the economy rebounds.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of
our business and our Shareholders for enabling them to evaluate how
the principles of corporate governance have been applied. The corporate
governance principles of our Company emphasize a quality board, sound
internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

Our Company has adopted and complied with the Code Provisions
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board had reviewed our
Company’s corporate governance policies. The Directors will carry out a
regular review and will propose any amendment, if and when necessary,
to ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.

The below sets out the corporate governance principles and practices
adopted by the Group which indicate how the Group has applied relevant
principles in the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

Aligning the company’s culture with its purpose, values and
strategy

Our board has established the Group’s purpose, values and strategy, and
satisfy itself that these and the Group’s culture are aligned. All Directors
act with integrity, lead by example, and promote the desired culture.
Such culture instils and continually reinforces across our Company’s
values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

Culture and values

A healthy corporate culture set up by the Group was vital for the
Company to achieve its vision and mission towards sustainable growth.
It is the Board’s role to foster a corporate culture with core principles to
guide the behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Company’s
vision, values and business strategies are aligned to it.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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The framework of integrity values

Integrity underpins the behaviours of the Group’s employees in working
with each other and conducting business activities with business
partners. We have human resources management policies in place
to promote a caring environment with mutual respect and inclusive
atmosphere in the workplace. Regarding business ethics, the Group’s
Code of Conduct has defined the behavioural guidelines for its
employees to ensure that the Group’s values of acting lawfully, ethically
and responsibly are continuously instilled and reinforced.

The framework of accountability culture

Our Group’s culture of accountability begins from the strong leadership
of the Board, with delegation of authorities to its Board Committees, the
senior management of the respective business units, to every individual
employee throughout the Group. With clear objectives and goals set
in our business plans, budgets and forecast authorised by the Board,
augmented by open communication and fair staff performance evaluation
mechanism, our management and employees are committed to and
accountable for achieving the targets for the long-term success of the
Company.

Business strategies and policies enhancement

The Board carries out ongoing comprehensive review of the Group’s
formulation of business strategies and policies, which covers the Group’s
position in the major markets and service lines, leading drivers of change
in the industry and markets, and marketing strategies to seize business
opportunities in long run.

WHISTLEBLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
Whistleblowing mechanism

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and administrative
measures on handling staff reporting of irregularities to ensure employees
can whistle blow through proper channels under confidence when
suspected misconducts occurred or may occur which relate to the
business or other aspects, and such reports are handled and followed-
up appropriately, without risk of retaliation or revenge. The Company
will take appropriate actions against any improprieties and, where
appropriate, report the cases to the relevant enforcement authorities.

The Company regularly reviews the whistle-blowing mechanism, related
policies and administrative measures to ensure their effectiveness.
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Anti-corruption measures

The Company has adopted the Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy which
provides guidance to our employees on how to recognise and deal with
bribery and corruption. Every employee has a duty to report any potential
violations of the policy to the Company through the channels set out
therein.

The Company also strives to uphold all relevant anti-bribery and
corruption laws and regulations in Hong Kong and ensures that a
robust anti-bribery and corruption control framework is implemented to
strengthen the standards of conduct of its employees. The overall anti-
bribery and corruption framework is jointly supervised by the Board,
its designated board committees and the senior management. The
Company conducts regular anti-bribery and corruption risk assessment
to evaluate the effectiveness of the framework and ensure it is properly
and adequately managed and implemented.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE MECHANISM

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and conducted review of such
mechanisms on an annual basis. The Directors are entitled to seek, at the
Group’s expense, independent professional advice reasonably necessary
for discharging their duties as Directors. The Company Secretary will
make necessary arrangements when the Directors wish to seek such
independent professional advice.

The Board authorises the management to implement the business
strategies and has formulated clear written guidelines which stipulate
the circumstances where the management should report to and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any contracts and commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will
conduct regular reviews on these authorisation and guidelines.

The Company has received confirmation in writing of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors and considers
them to be independent of the management and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a
variety and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business,
marketing, finance, investment and legal profession. During the year
and up to the date of this report, the composition of the Board was as
follows:
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Directors

B

Membership of Board Committee(s)

ESZEERERE

Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam
BR A T
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Boarad)
BRABRE (ZEESEE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)
WIFESLE (TTHAEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond

BRIKER SE

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

RNRWE &

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
REIESLE

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Tse Pui To. The roles of the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals.

During the year, the Chairman has met with all three independent non-
executive Directors without the executive Directors presence and this
was in compliance with the Code Provisions.

Member of Remuneration Committee
FMNEEEKE
Chairman of Nomination Committee

REZEBELE

Chairman of Audit Committee
EREZEBER

Chairman of Remuneration Committee
SMEERER

Member of Audit Committee
ENEZEGKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REZEEKE

Member of Audit Committee
BEZEEGKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
HMEEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
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Our Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules, requiring that the Board should contain at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of
the Board, and at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
The independent non-executive Directors have dedicated to provide our
Company with professional advice with respect to the steady operation
and development of our Company. They have also exercised supervision
and coordination to safeguard the interests of our Company and our
Shareholders.

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (independent non-executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee) is regarded as the appropriate
person to fulfill such qualifications of having appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
to our Company their independence during the year ended 31 March
2022 in particularly in regard to the requirements under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board considers that the independent non-executive
Directors are free from any business or other relationship that may
influence their exercise of independent judgement and are considered to
be independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The operation of the board

The Board’s main task is to supervise and direct the management of
our Company to operate under good corporate governance, in order to
maximise value of our Shareholders while balancing the interest of our
various stakeholders.

The Board holds meetings to monitor the performance of our Company
and to be briefed with market developments, to discuss and decide on
major corporate, strategic and operational issues, and to appraise any
good investment opportunities available.

The major duties performed by our Board are as follows:

1. setting our Company’s values and standards, the objectives of
our Company and responsibilities of the Board and its various
committees;

2. establishing the strategic direction for our Company;

3. setting targets for and monitoring the performance of the
management of our Group;

4. supervising the annual and interim results of our Group;

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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5. ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective internal control
is in place to assess and manage the risk of our Group and
implementing appropriate systems to manage these risks;

6. overseeing the relationships between our Company and our
Shareholders, customers, the community, various government
authorities, interest groups and others who have a legitimate
interest in the responsible conduct of our Group’s business;

7. identifying and assessing any matters involving a conflict of interest
for a substantial Shareholder or a Director;

8.  determining (if any and available) any material acquisitions and/or
disposals of assets, investments, capital, projects, authority levels,
major treasury policies, risk management policies and key human
resources issues; and

9.  considering and determining issues which are the responsibilities of
the Board pursuant to our Company’s Articles of Association and
the relevant laws and regulations in force by which our Company is
governed from time to time.

The Board is also responsible for the following corporate governance
duties:

1. developing and reviewing our Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations on any
amendments or updates (if any);

2. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and our Company’s senior management;

3. reviewing and monitoring our Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to our Company’s employees
and Directors;

5. reviewing our Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under the CG
Code; and

6. being responsible for performing any other corporate governance
duties and functions set out in the CG Code and the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time), or delegating the responsibility to a
committee or committees (if applicable).
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The Board delegates to the management of the Company in respect of
the major corporate matters as stated below:

preparing of the annual and interim results of the Group to be
approved by the Board;

giving clear directions to the management team as to their powers
of management, and circumstances in which the management

team should report back;

implementing of sufficient systems of internal control and risk
management procedures of the Group;

executing of the corporate strategies and directions of the Group

adopted by the Board; and

of the Group, etc.

The Board members are required to meet regularly at least four times a
year. The attendance of each Director at these meetings are stated as
follows:

carrying out day-to-day management, administration and operation
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Board meetings annual general
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Board meetings regularly held during the year were scheduled in
advance, and notices of not less than fourteen days were given to all
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. Board papers were
circulated to Directors not less than three days in advance before the
date of each Board meeting to enable the Directors to be well informed
on matters to be raised and discussed at the Board meetings. All
Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
the Board meetings.

In addition, the Directors had full and timely access at all times to all
information of our Group and may seek independent professional advice
at our Company’s expense in carrying out their functions after making a
request to the Board.

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, is the brother
of Mr. Chan Koung Nam, and both of them are the executive Directors
and substantial Shareholders of the Company. The biographies of the
Chairman and the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management”. Save as disclosed on those pages as set out
above or any pages in this annual report, the Board members do not
have any family, financial, business or other material/relevant relationship
with each other and in particular, between the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer as disclosed therein.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 74 to 76. The list of
Directors and their roles and functions have been published on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment and re-election of retiring Director

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company for an initial term of three years and is renewable
automatically for successive terms of three years, and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has been appointed for an initial
term of two years and thereafter it may be extended for such period as
he and our Company may agree in writing.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of our Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for the time
being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director shall be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Tse Pui To (executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
(independent non-executive Director) will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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Training and support for Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2022, briefings and reading materials
had been provided and funded by our Company to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills (including but not limited to corporate
governance matters and any development or updates on the Listing
Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements) as their continuous
professional development so as to keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities and to emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, all Directors had participated
in the continuous professional development, by attending external
seminars or reading materials on various topics covering regulations,
corporate governance, finance and business, etc. Our Company will also
continuously update our Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices, and to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code to monitor the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by our Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they all have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code at all the applicable time throughout their tenure during the year
under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
to oversee the relevant aspects of our Group’s affairs. The three Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of our Company was established with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

During the year, the roles and functions of the Audit Committee included:

(@ making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving
the remuneration and other terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;
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reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

developing and implementing policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

monitoring the integrity of our Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, interim report, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein;

reviewing our Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems;

considering major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

reviewing our Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing our external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of risk management and
control and management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out above;

reviewing arrangements employees of our Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, risk management, internal control or other
matters as well as our whistleblowing policy;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing our
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

The Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities as required in
accordance with its terms of reference during the year ended 31 March
2022 and the major of which are stated as:

1.

reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim results, annual
results and financial statements of our Company and our Group
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments, and making
recommendations to the Board for approval;
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2. reviewing and monitoring the reporting, accounting and financial
policies and practices of our Company;

& reviewing the interim report, annual report, and results
announcements of our Company;

4. considering and recommending to the Board for the re-
appointment of our Company’s independent external auditors;

S reviewing the connected transactions and discloseable
transactions; and

6. reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, and reviewing the works performed
by the independent internal control advisor, namely, APAC
Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited
(“APAC”), on the risk management and internal control systems.

The members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Chan Siu Wing
Raymond (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Chu Yat Pang
Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, all of them are independent non-
executive directors whereas Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, all the Audit Committee
members have met two times, with the attendance of our Company’s
external auditor, in compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference. The attendance of each member at
these meetings is stated as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of Audit
Members of the Audit Committee Committee meetings held
AR,
ERERBANE EREREERBTRY
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIYEHTES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
BRIKRESE (FREEEF/E)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 2/2
RIRME &
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 2/2
SREIS S
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the contents of this annual report.
The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed with the
management and external auditor of our Company the matters regarding
the internal controls, risk management, and financial reporting including
the accounting principles and practices related to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, and
recommended them to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Auditor’s Remuneration and Auditor Related Matters

The Audit Committee of our Company is responsible for considering
the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit services provided by our external auditor.
During the year, our Group has paid or payable to our external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the audit service in relation to the audit of
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 of HK$800,000 (2021: HK$800,000) and the non-audit service
in relation to the review of interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six-month ended 30 September 2021 of HK$250,000
(80 September 2020: HK$250,000), totalling HK$1,050,000 (2021:
HK$1,050,000) in aggregate. The Audit Committee considered that the
non-audit service has no adverse effect on the independence of the
auditor. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

@)

—— 24

making recommendations to the Board on our Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the Remuneration Policy;

reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in our Group;

reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
(i) had reviewed the remuneration packages and bonus of executive
Directors and our Company’s senior management in relation to the
terms of their service agreements and in accordance with the written
remuneration policy of the Company (which had been reviewed during
the said year); (i) had assessed the performance of executive Directors
and the Company’s senior management; and (iii) had reviewed the
Group’s remuneration policy.

Our Company has adopted and the Remuneration Committee has been
delegated with responsibility by the Board to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the senior management of
our Company.

We have an established practice in determining our independent
non-executive Directors’ fees, which does not involve equity-based
remuneration with performance-related elements, with an aim to avoid
leading to bias in their decision-making and compromise their objectivity
and independence.

The members of the Remuneration Committee include Mr. Chu Yat Pang
Terry (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Cheung Kok
Cheong, both are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chan
Koung Nam, an executive Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, all the committee members have
met two times. The attendance of each member at these meetings are
stated as follows:

HZE2022F3A31HILFE -
maﬁ%%m%Zﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ$ﬁiaﬂi
MEERFNCEMFNERE  BTRHITES
REARGBGHREBABZEHMEAS RIET
(i ERITEERARRBREBABZR
B R (i) et AN 2 FEBUR -

ARRIERAMFHEZESCEEFTERT
BEEEARAENNTEERSRERE
ZEBES -

BRAREEBIFNTEEMES T EEFER
EED - B AP RERREMNBERB
EHEEBRRENAREFEREILLBEER
BERBIIE -

%ﬁ@ﬂ?/\ SREBEBIFERATESTRZE
EE(FHEZEEIR)RRESEE UKk
%ﬁ%$ﬁtﬁ%$°

HEC022F3A31BHILEE  2EBZEEK
EE;E%TTEEJ/AEE#%O Xﬁﬁi% @' H:II
FERCERAN T ¢

Members of the Remuneration Committee
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Number of Remuneration
Committee meetings held
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
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Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry
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Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
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Executive Directors:
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Mr. Chan Koung Nam
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

(@ reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement our Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors;

(d)  making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

(e) reviewing regularly the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy of the Company to ensure the effectiveness of these policies
and reviewing any progress on achieving those objectives in these
policies.

The members of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Chan Kwong
Yin William, an executive Director and Chairman of the Board (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung
Kok Cheong, both are independent non-executive Directors.

Our Nomination Committee, which comprised a majority of independent
non-executive Directors, was chaired by the Chairman of the Board
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Our Company has complied with Rules 3.27A of the Listing Rules,
requiring that the Nomination Committee should be chaired by the
Chairman of the Board or an independent non-executive director and
comprised of a majority of independent non-executive directors.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, one meeting of the Nomination & Z20224F3A31 HILF[E @ XL ES Y
Committee was held to (i) assess the independence of independent non-  #17— k&% © ()P EABILIERITES 2
executive Directors; (il) review the re-appointment of retiring Directors B &1 (i) &1 AN QA 5] 2021 & R A F
at the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company; (i) review the AEBEZTETESC2EE (VT ES
structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and determine the & 2288 - A - KE Z Tt RAK I EF
policy; (iv) review the roles of the existing Directors and ascertain whether R @ (V)R RTEE 2 ACMEHEEHS
any conflict of interests had been arisen for the Directors; and (v) review TEH FzZER RV BFAQAR 2B
the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy of the Company to HEREFEKEZ TILHE @ HRZERE
ensure their effectiveness. TZBH -

During the year ended 31 March 2022, one meeting of the Nomination & £2022F3A31HItFE - IERELE &
Committee was held and all members had attended this meeting with B2 &R{T— k&% 2ERKEHVBELERRE

their respective records of attendance as follows: o BRERBCHFRENT
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Members of the Nomination Committee Committee meeting held
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Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William
(Chairman of the Nomination Committes) 1/1
RABEE (FEZEEF/E)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYEHTES:
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 1/1
RIRME T E
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 11
SREIE S
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available onthe IR BZ B @B EE D BN AR A LB AT
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively. Bk ERE -
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Nomination policy

The Board has adopted a “Nomination Policy” which governs the criteria,
procedures and process of nomination of Directors, so as to ensure that
the Board should (i) have a balance of skills and experience; (i) always
maintain the minimum number of independent non-executive Directors
as required under the Listing Rules; and (iii) ensure the independency of
those independent non-executive Directors.

When identifying, assessing and recommending suitable candidates for
directorship for the Board’s consideration, the Nomination Committee will
take into account our Company’s current needs and qualities needed for
the Board'’s service, including but not limited to:

(@ his/her ethical, integrity and maturity characters, educational and
professional backgrounds, experience in money lending business
or other relevant industry, and expertise in that area;

(b)  his/her willingness to devote the required amount of time to
carrying out the duties and responsibilities of the Board and various
committees’ membership for multiple terms. In this regards,
the numbers of offices held by the candidates in other public
companies or organisations, and other significant commitments,
etc. will be considered;

(c) any potential conflict of interest with the Group’s business and
assessment of the independence if he/she is appointed as
independent non-executive Directors; and

(d)  his/her willingness to comply with the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements in full for discharging his/her liabilities.

For those potential candidates who appear upon first consideration
to meet the above criteria, the Nomination Committee will conduct
appropriate inquiries and arrange for in-person meeting with such
candidates. Depending on the results of such inquiries and interviews,
the Nomination Committee will propose this candidate to the Board for
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy”, which requires the
Nomination Committee of our Company to review annually the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board for
achieving diversity to our Board members, so as to enhance the quality
of our performance. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee has considered a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience.

The Nomination Committee will consider all the measurable objectives
that have been set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board as
selection criteria for potential candidate to the Board. The Company aims
to build and maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
of the Board that are considered beneficial to the Company, and will
regularly review the progress on achieving those measurable objectives
set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board and Nomination Committee have reviewed and will continue
to review the implementation and effectiveness of this policy on an annual
basis, as appropriate, and discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The financial results of our Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe as
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and Rule 13.49(6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of our Group on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
which gives a true and fair view of our Group’s financial affairs for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of our Group is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Risk management and internal control

The maintenance of a sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems in our Group is important to safeguard our Shareholders’
investment and our Company’s assets.

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to oversee our Company’s risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis and to
review their effectiveness at least annually. These systems are designated
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our business
objectives, and could only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, with the assistance from APAC, our Group has
identified and evaluated the relevant risks of our Group through a series
of interviews. During the risk identification and evaluation processes,
relevant risks were identified, evaluated and categorised into four
sections, namely financial, compliance, strategic and operational, and our
Group maintained a risk register to keep track of all identified risks which
provided to our Board, the Audit Committee and our management a
profile of those major and significant risks and a record of management’s
action taken to mitigate these risks. Each risk is evaluated at least
annually based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact to
our Group. This risk register is updated by our management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation and review
have been performed.

During the year, there were no significant risks identified under the
categories of financial risk and compliance risk. The following principal
and significant risks of the Group, identified and classified into strategic
risk and operational risks, were as follows:

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Strategic risks:

Unfavourable macro-economic condition and the diverse factors, such
as military conflict between Russia and Ukraine, the surge of Fed interest
rate and of the inflation rate in the U.S., etc. may affect the economic
and business conditions. Hence, cost of funding, revenue, financial
performance, operational results and business prospects may be
materially and adversely affected.

The prolonged occurrence of COVID-19 in Hong Kong may adversely
affect the business and operation of the company. If the outbreak
prolonged or any of the Group’s employees is contracted with COVID-19,
the employees may be subject to quarantine, which could disrupt the
normal operation of the business.

On the other hand, competition in the money lending industry is keen and
may materially and adversely affect business, financial performance and
operational results of the Group.

Finally, the changes in economic, political, business environment and
property market of Hong Kong could have a material and adverse impact
on the business, financial condition and results of operation of the Group.

Operational risks:

The decline in the value or residual value of mortgaged property will
lead to the reduction of the safety margin of the loan, and the risk of
recovering the full amount of the loan will be increased.

Environmental, Social and Governance risks:

With the persistent COVID-19 pandemic situation and increasing
importance of ESG, the Board places higher importance on the ESG
risks faced by the Group’s business operations.

The Board performs annual review to ensure the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the issuer’s accounting, internal assessment, financial reporting functions,
as well as those relating to the issuer’s ESG performance and reporting.

During the review, the Board considers the changes in the nature and
extent of significant risks (including ESG risks), and reviews the Group’s
ability to respond to such changes in its business and the external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks (including ESG risks) and of the internal control systems.
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During the year, the Board has appointed APAC to review and assess
our Group’s effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
and compliance controls, with a view to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualification and experience, training programmes
and budget of our accounting and financial reporting functions. APAC
had prepared the risk assessment report and internal control report
to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review, which covered
all material controls, including financial, operational, compliance and
strategical controls and risk management function and control of
our Group. Moreover, improvements in internal control systems as
recommended by APAC to enhance the risk management and internal
control systems of our Group were also adopted by the Board. Based
on the review findings and recommendation of APAC as well as the
comments and suggestion of our Audit Committee, our Board considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

Function of internal audit

Currently our Group has no internal audit function. The Board has
discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of
the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business
of our Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform our internal audit functions and
to review, at least annually, our risk management and internal control
systems. Although our Group did not establish internal audit function
during the year, the Board will continue to review a least annually the
need for the function of internal audit.

Inside information

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. Our Company has
adopted the inside information policy which aims to set out guidelines to
the Group’s directors, officers and all relevant employees to ensure inside
information (as defined below) of the Company is to be disseminated
to the public in an equal and timely manner in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations.

The term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group, because
of his office or employment, who is likely to be in possession of the
unpublished inside information (as defined below).
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Under the new Part XIVA of the SFO, inside information is the specific
information about the Company, its Shareholders or officers or its listed
securities or derivatives, which is not generally known to the persons
who are accustomed, or would be likely, to deal in the company’s listed
securities but would, if generally known to them, be likely to materially
affect the price of the Company’s listed securities.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s inside information policy, no matters arose from the review.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2022, our Company Secretary
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with our Shareholders and other
stakeholders and encouraging them to communicate actively with our
Company.

This policy sets out the principles of our Company in relation to
Shareholders’ communications, with the objective of ensuring that the
communications with our Shareholders and other stakeholders (including
potential investors) with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about our Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, corporate
governance and risk profile), in order to enable our Shareholders and
other stakeholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner mainly
through our Company’s corporate communications (such as interim
reports and annual reports, announcements and circulars, and notices
of meetings), annual general meetings and other general meetings, as
well as disclosure on the websites of our Company and of the Stock
Exchange, respectively.

Announcements, interim reports, annual reports and circulars and
associated explanatory documents etc. are despatched to our
Shareholders and are also published on the websites of our Company
and of the Stock Exchange under a dedicated “Investor Relations”
section thereon as soon as practicable in plain language and in both
English and Chinese versions or where permitted, in single language, and
will be updated on a regular basis and in a timely manner.
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Our Company’s website provides our Shareholders and other
stakeholders with the corporate information, such as our principal
business activities and products, the development of corporate
governance and the corporate social responsibilities of our Group, etc.

Our Company continues to commit to a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and effective communication with our Shareholders
and analysts by maximising the use of our Company’s website as a
channel to disclose our Company’s updated information and corporate
communications to our Shareholders, stakeholders and the public on a
timely basis. Our Company also encourages our Shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of our Group’s businesses
and convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and senior
management.

Our Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy during the year. The senior
management discussed any revisions that may be required, and
recommended any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval on the aspects including (i) how to ensure the Company to
provide shareholders and the investment community with equal and
timely access to the information about the Group, and (ii) the ways to
enhance effective communication with shareholders through various
platforms and channels specified in the policy.

Shareholders’ rights

1.  Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of our Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of our
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of our
Company, shall at all times have the right to require an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the Board.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of our Company at our principal place of
business in Hong Kong for the purpose of requiring an EGM of
our Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

Such EGM will be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.
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If the requisition is in order, an EGM will be convened by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the requirements under the
Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules to
all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.

Depending on the nature of the proposals, any EGM of our
Company at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered shall be called by notice of not less than twenty-one
clear days and not less than ten clear business days. All other EGM
of our Company may be called by notice of not less than fourteen
clear days and not less than ten clear business days (whereas
the notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or
deemed to be served and of the day for which it is given), together
with the accompanying circular which also sets out details of each
proposed resolution and other relevant information as required
under the Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries such as their shareholdings,
share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of
share certificates or dividend warrants, registration and payment of
dividend, etc. to our Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited:

Address Suites 3301-04, 33/F.
Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road
North Point, Hong Kong

Email . info@unionregistrars.com.hk

Tel © (852) 2849 3399

Fax © (852) 2849 3319

Shareholders and other stakeholders may also raise enquiries in
respect of our Company’s matters in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary whose contact details are as follow:

Address Unit 3410, 34th Floor
Tower lI, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Email . ir@hkfinance.com.hk
Tel © (852) 2525 3535
Fax . (852) 2525 3534
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

Y

(i)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

Pursuant to Articles 83(2) and 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and the “Procedures for Shareholders to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director of the Company”,
which is available at our Company’s website, a Shareholder
who wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting
should lodge:

(@ notice in writing signed by him/her concerned of his/
her intention to propose a candidate for election as a
Director which must include the personal particulars of
this nominated candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules; and

(b)  notice in writing signed by this nominated candidate to
be proposed indicating his/her willingness to be elected
and his/her consent to publish his/her information on
our Company’s announcement.

The above-mentioned notices should be lodged and
addressed to the Chairman of the Board or Chief Executive
Officer of our Company at our principal place of business in
Hong Kong, and the period for lodgment of these notices
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting and end no later than ten business days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for putting other forward proposals at general
meetings:

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general
meeting, Shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with their detailed contact information to
our Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
our Company in Hong Kong. The notice period to be given
to all Shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised
by the Shareholders concerned at general meetings varies
according to the nature of the proposal.
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Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no change in the
amended Articles of Association of our Company.

Our Company’s latest versions of Articles of Association are available on
the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Dividend policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy to allow Shareholders to
participate in our Company’s profit whilst retaining adequate reserves
for our Company’s future growth. Any distribution of dividends shall be
in accordance with the Articles of Association of our Company and with
the applicable laws and regulations. The Board may distribute dividends
by way of cash, shares, or by other means as the Board considers as
appropriate.

Profit distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability and
should take into account of (i) the earning per share of our Company; (i)
reasonable return in investment of the investors and the shareholders;
(iiiy general financial conditions, cash flow situation, and business plan,
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus of
our Company; (iv) any restrictions on payment of dividends by our
Company’s or the Group’s lenders; (v) the general market sentiment and
circumstances; and (vi) other factors the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will continue to review this policy as appropriate, and may
declare and distribute final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends from time to time.
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INTRODUCTION

Since the establishment of our Group more than twenty years ago, our
Group has been principally engaged in the money lending business of
providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong Kong.
In October 2013, our Group was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and we are the first Hong Kong listed company specialising
in property mortgages with a solid financial background and high
transparency. We are still focusing on our core business in property
mortgage loans under our well-known and highly recognised brand name
“Hong Kong Finance”. We also expanded our money lending business
in unsecured personal loan products in 2016 in order to diversify
ourselves in different money lending market segments, to capture new
market opportunity and to enhance our overall interest margin.

We aim to provide “professional, reliable and flexible” mortgage services
to our customers. Our experienced sales managers provide customised
solutions based on the specific needs of customers. In order to build
a harmonious community, our Group strives to maintain a sustainable
business and contribute to the society.

Sustainable development is an integral part of our business strategy in
order to achieve business excellence and to enhance capabilities for
long-term competitiveness. Our Group is committed to maintaining our
operation in manner that is economically, socially and environmentally
sustainable while balancing the interests of our various stakeholders
and foster a positive impact on the society. Our sustainability strategy is
based on the compliance with the applicable legal requirements, principle
of sustainability and opinions from stakeholders. We have established and
implemented various policies to manage and monitor the risks related
to the environment, employment, operating practices and community.
Details of the management approaches to sustainable development of
different areas are illustrated in this report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on
the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will invest
in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes within the
Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the potential to be
affected by the impact of the Group’s activities, products, services and
relationships. It allows the Group to understand risks and opportunities.
The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain
good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s roles  ERAEB 2 AEEBE - RERII N ES
and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group engages T2 M E T EEEEE - REFHEEFE
with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial relationships and to P EAEREEFEEZ YA KSR AESR
seek their views on its business proposals and initiatives as well as to ¥ EZRTEZER - UWREHETS - T
promote sustainability in the marketplace, workplace, community and  {E35FT ~ 1t [& MIRBAIHEEE -
environment.
The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from A&EBHEBEAENE THRESHRAERE
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the #/EB 2 B - e NIHEEFZWHEE -
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders ANREECD BB G RFAEKZTHEEE 2T EHF
that are important to our business and established various channels for 7% @ TR SEEBEREE - TREBMAE
communication. The following table provides an overview of the Group’s & £ Z# % % LA )32 FALABE4E - BeiR R B 2
key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of communication & & & & &
are used to reach, listen and respond.
Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels
BHHE BEEE EiERE
Government and o Comply with the laws and regulations ° On-site inspections and checks
regulatory authorities o Proper tax payment ° Research and discussion through work
o Promote regional economic conferences, work reports preparation
development and employment and submission for approval
° Annual reports and announcements
o Company website
B R EEHE o  BETHERERNER e  EiRERE
o HOEHTE e FBRTIHEgR REIERERER
o  HDEHLHEEREME HOE R R R
o  FWRQM
LI /NS
Shareholders and . Return on the investment ° Annual general meeting and other
Investors o Information disclosure and shareholder meetings
transparency o Annual reports and announcements
° Protection of interests and fair ° Newsletter
treatment of shareholders ° Meeting with investors and analysts
° Websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange
° Company contact information
BRRERREE e  KREMDW s BREBEFAERHEMREREG
s EBHRERBEKEHE o  FHRAM
o IRERIM=mRAFFS o B
e HEEERSNESH
. RATBURBEBHERIMERA
A Ak
e  ARRAMBER
EREEEREARAR
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Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels
B0 E BrsE EERE
Employees o Safeguard the rights and interests of Meetings and conferences
employees Trainings, seminars, briefing sessions
° Working environment Entertainment, cultural and sport
° Career development opportunities activities
° Self-actualisation Feedback box
o Occupational health and safety
° Staff remuneration, benefits and well-
being
3= o  [RIEESEFN MR CHENEE
o TREIRIR B HReRENTE
s EXERKE IREE - UL REBBEES
e BHHER BERREEME
o RBERERHEZ
o BIFEN- mﬂ&%ﬁ
Customers ° Safe and high-quality products Email and customer service hotline
. Stable relationship Visits and meetings
° Information transparency
° Business ethics
®5F s AEKEBEM BELEPREELR
s RTEBR B kegm
s  EHEMR
s HWERER
Bank o To repay loans on schedule, monitor Work conferences
operating conditions and risks and On-site visits, post-loan tracking and
operate with honesty and credibility various business communication
$B1T s RREREN EREEMRKE TiEe=
b WABIE R A EE EMasd BREBHREEEERA
Financial Institution o Compliance with the laws and Work conferences
regulations On-site visits, post-loan tracking and
various business communication
BB o  ETHERERNER IEg:
Biahd - EREHRSEEEEM
Peer/Industry ° Experience sharing and cooperation Industry conference and seminars
associations o Fair competition Site visit
B 1TEHE s REBHZTHEAHE TEgRLANE
o DNEBRF BiahE
Media o Transparent information Media
iR e  EHREMR EY LS
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Stakeholders
&

Issues of concern

BXEE

Engagement channels

BAgRE

Public and Communities | e Community involverent
° Social responsibilities

DPBRALTRHE ° %i 2
o teERf

° Volunteering

° Village visiting

o Charity and social investment
e  EIRK

o NHERE

s RERHMERE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting
by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business
of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators
(KPIs) are reported in this Report according to recommendations of the
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules) and the GRI
Guidelines.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

° Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant

ESG reports of the local and international industry peers.

° The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on
the important of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of ESG
Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

° The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.
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Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

° Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in the year ended 31 March 2022,
those important ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the management of the
Group’s sustainability issues. During the year, the Board spent time
in evaluating the impact of ESG-related risks on our operation and
formulating relevant policy in dealing with the risks. The oversight of
the Board is to ensure the management to have all the right tools and
resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy and long-
term value creation.

ESG Working Group

The Group attaches great importance to ESG work. Under the leadership
of the Board, a working group has been set up (“ESG Working Group”)
to implement specific safety and environmental protection work so as
to comply with government requirements, implement the concept of
“safety and environmental protection” in its operation and fulfil its social
responsibilities.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process and its risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the ESG Working Group at the
meeting, which holds once per year. During the reporting period, the ESG
Working Group and the management reviewed the ESG governance and
different ESG issues. The ESG Working Group mainly consisted of an
executive Director and two senior management of the Group.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-
related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
each year. We ensure various platforms and channels of communication
are used to reach, listen and respond to our key stakeholders. Through
general communication with stakeholders, the Group understands the
expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained
allow the Group to make more informed decisions, and to better assess
and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification by
industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritisation with stakeholder
engagement; and (3) validation and determining material ESG issues
based on results of communication among stakeholders and the
management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their degree
and change of attention to each significant ESG issue, and can enable
us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable development work in
the future. Those important and material ESG areas identified during our
material assessment were discussed in this report.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group is mainly involved in office operations and its business
activities do not have significant impact on the environment or
natural resources. In spite of this, as a financial services provider,
we recognise that we have an obligation to reduce the impact of
our operations on the environment and be accountable for the
resources and materials that are used in our daily operations.
We are committed to continuously improving our environmental
sustainability by responsibly managing our operation, reducing our
carbon footprint and using resources effectively.

Throughout the year, the Group fully complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong, such
as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), the Sewage
Services Ordinance (Cap. 463) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354). Besides, no concluded case regarding environmental
issues was brought against us or our employees. We also regularly
update itself with the latest development of the applicable laws and
regulations on environmental protection.
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Apart from complying with the environmental protection rules and
standards, the Group emphasises environmental protection and
seeks ways to enhance efficiency in the use of natural resources
and reduce the environmental impact of its business operation.
We take the initiative to formulate and implement the “Corporate
Environmental Policy” to establish relevant emissions reduction and
energy saving initiatives internal policies and campaigns to facilitate
the effective use of natural resources and eco-friendly operation.
We also encourage employees to build up environmental-friendly
habits through notice and promotion to save resources and
minimise pollution.

A1. EMISSIONS
Air Pollutant Emissions

Air pollutant emissions control is essential to mitigate the
impact on the environment and to protect the health of
employees. As the Group is mainly involved in general office
activities, the amount of air pollutant emissions is insignificant.
QOur air pollutant emissions are mainly generated from the
mobile sources. We take initiative to formulate plans in
transportation management for the reduction of air pollutant
emissions in our daily business operation, for example
encouraging employees and clients to take video conference
instead of unnecessary transportation. The increase in air
pollutant emissions in 2022 was mainly attributable to the
increase in the uses of motor vehicles for business purposes
during the year. Furthermore, the Group targets to manage
the reduction of air pollutants emissions to be in line with
the growth of our Group’s money lending business or the
increase of employee number in medium to long term time
horizon in future. The detail of air pollutant emissions of the
Group during the reporting period was as follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT
RI5 - g MNERWmE

BRETRERURFEEIN  AEETE
BERR > USKESRAEREAYEX
RBRORGEEHRRTEZTE - &
MEPHHEEL BB 2RRREK ]
i X A2 B R BE M BN BE R 4 A BRI R A&
8 AMEEZARRERMAHERER
E2HAEE - RAITEBBANER
HEEEENRAREBIE  KEMEHEER

B = N
BERDITA -

Al. HBERY
RSB
I 22 SRS M BE R T R B IR R
LHERRERERRECEE —
R ARAEEETES R —BHA
EEY WMERSEMERER
Mo Bz ZERSAMERERR
ERER - BMEBHERBERE
& R RAEEBR Z2ERS
RYEERR - BINEEE B FIRF K
AREERNBETBEZRBLH
2022 F 2 E=ERSAYBEREM
FTEHRNFAEGRENABERAE
TN o pbHN - AEBENERAER
WO ERISRYPER  FEEARE
EREESNE RS RRPRER
BT AZRIZINRE 5 - RRE
B AEBEZERISEMPERE
U

For the year ended 31 March
BE3HA3IALEE

Type of Air Pollutant Emission Unit 2022 2021
ZERITRYE R B 2022 20214
Nitrogen oxides (NO ) kg 6.38 6.27
A8 (NO) N
Sulphur dioxide (SO,) kg 0.12 0.12
—&bH (SO,) N
Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.47 0.46
FRFRLT (PM) Ny
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emission

GHG is considered as one of the major contributors to the
climate change and global warming. The Group recognises
that climate change is gradually concerned by the community
as it affects our daily life and poses a risk to its business.
Hence, we are committed to mitigating the effects of climate
change and to protecting the health of employees.

The major sources of our GHG emission are the fuel used by
vehicles and indirect emission through electricity consumption
for our office operations. The Group strives to improve
energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption so as to
minimise GHG emission by adopting energy saving initiatives
mentioned in the section “Use of Resources” of this ESG
Report. The increase in GHG emissions for the year ended
31 March 2022 was mainly attributable to the increase in the
uses of motor vehicles and electricity consumed for business
purposes during the year. The Group will strive to reduce the
GHG emissions to be in line with the growth of our Group
money lending business or increase of employee number in
medium to long term time horizon in future.

The detail of GHG emissions of the Group during the
reporting period was as follow:
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For the year ended 31 March
BES3HA3IALEE

Type of GHG Emission Unit 2022 2021
BEREHERER By 2022 20214
Scope 1° tonnes of COe 21.65 21.63
#E 1 —&1th ﬁ?ﬁi
Scope 22 tonnes of COe 27.39 26.00
F[E 22 —&1t ﬁ?-? =
Total GHG emission tonnes of COe 49.04 47.63
BERERERE a1t ﬁ;i
GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO,e/area in sq. ft. 0.01 0.01
BEREEREE W — & ﬁ?i/tiﬁ%ﬁ*i

Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by our Group. 1 HE1 : REAEEHEERILHRFR 2 ERTM -

2 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by 2 HE2: REELEXEBEFABAE N ZHEHR -
our Group.
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Waste management is considered as one of the material
topics in environmental protection. The Group recognises
the importance of waste reduction. Waste management
measures have been introduced and implemented to
minimise the amount of waste generated and the impact on
the environment. With our business nature, no hazardous
waste is generated or discharged during the office operation.

For non-hazardous waste, the waste is mainly generated
from daily office operation. The Group takes initiative to
reduce waste by formulating effective measures. Generally,
we have engaged qualified recycling companies to collect
and handle the waste in accordance to the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354) in Hong Kong. The major source of our
non-hazardous waste is paper waste.

With the aim to reduce the amount of waste generated,
the Group endeavors to cultivate environmental awareness
among employees. In order to reduce the paper
consumption, we encourage our employees to consider
environmental-friendly printing such as double-sided printing
and copying. We also encourage employees to reuse single
sided non-confidential print out. The waste paper is reused
as fillers for packing when practicable.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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On top of that, the Group actively promotes electronic
communication such as emails to reduce the amount of
paper used. In addition to paper saving, we also encourage
employees to reuse stationery such as envelopes and use
reusable items such as reusable cutleries and cups. All these
measures are geared at reducing waste such as paper waste
which can help mitigate the global greenhouse effect as well.
Recycling bags are available for paper collection. All paper
boxes, paper, newspaper and magazines are collected for
recycling purpose. The amount of non-hazardous waste
generated for the year ended 31 March 2022 remained stable
when compared with 2021 as the Group strived for finding
ways to manage the office waste effectively during the year.
The Group has set comprehensive reduction target on non-
hazardous waste generation to be in line with the growth of
our Group’s money lending business or increase of employee
number in medium to long term time horizon in future. The
detail of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group during
the reporting period was as follows:
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For the year ended 31 March
BE3A3IBLFE

Type of Wastes Disposal Unit 2022 2021
REREEYER B 2022 F 2021
Non-hazardous waste disposed tonnes 3.00 3.01
RERZEREY i

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee 0.07 0.08
BEEZVEE W& 8

During the reporting period, non-hazardous waste recycled
by the Group was as follows:

RIBEHRA - AEEFFE Y EEZRE
ZWERWT

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A31ALEE

Type of Wastes Recycled Unit 2022 2021
] Uk BE SR Y 4R Rl By 2022 F 20214
Paper recycled tonnes 0.43 0.44
o] Yz 4 o 1§
Paper recycled intensity tonnes/employee 0.01 0.01
BN W, 1E8
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A2.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business.
We have an in-depth understanding of the importance of
safeguarding sustainable development of the environment
and this to attach importance to efficient utilisation of
resources by introducing various measures in daily office
operation. We understand that staff participation is the
key to achieve such goals. We strive to build up a working
environment that emphasises the “green office” policy such
as a set of guidelines to improve the efficient use of resources
for long-term sustainability. We also motivate our employees
to participate in resources conservation activities to promote
resources saving.

Energy Consumption

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business. With
aims of resource saving and implementation of energy saving
measures, we actively promote the concept of energy saving
and emission reduction into the entire process of its business
development and operation and implements different energy
saving measures.

Regarding energy consumption of the Group, petrol and
purchased electricity mainly result from fuel used by vehicles
and premises operation respectively. The Group endeavors to
reduce the energy consumption by advocating various energy
conservation strategies. For examples, we choose to use
power-saving facilities and reduce the number of equipment
used. Computers are switched to energy-saving mode when
they are not in use for a long period of time. All power supply
in the area is switched off while idle. Besides, the temperature
of air-conditioners is maintained at an energy-efficient level
to reduce the energy consumption. Energy conservation
reminders are placed to increase employees’ awareness of
energy saving. We will consistently seek ways to improve
energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption in our
facilities in the future. The increase in energy consumption
for the year ended 31 March 2022 was mainly attributable
to the increase in the uses of motor vehicles and purchased
electricity consumed for business purposes during the
year. The Group has set inclusive total energy consumption
reduction target to be in line with the growth of our Group’s
money lending business or increase of employee number in
medium to long term time horizon in future.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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The detail of energy consumption of the Group during the
reporting period was as follows:

gl

R R - AR B FRM RS
T -

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A31ALEE

Type of Energy Unit 2022 2021
BEIR 3 A B 2022 % 20214
Purchased electricity MWh 38.58 36.62
BAE KB

Petrol MWh 72.36 71.01
Ve JKELBF

Total energy consumption MWh 110.94 107.63
BERMRFES JK BB

Energy consumption intensity MWh/area in sq. ft. 0.03 0.03
BRFEREE KEE ¥ HRERE

Water Consumption

Water is another important resource used during the daily
operations. The business of our Group is operated in office
premises where water supply is solely controlled by and
centrally managed by the respective property management
of the building. In this case, it is not feasible for the Group to
provide all relevant water consumption data as there is no
separate meter for the individual office unit to record water
usage. In spite of this, we strive to prevent unnecessary
water consumption by promptly reporting to the relevant
department in case of a leaking faucet. We also actively raise
employees’ awareness of water saving through green office
policies such as reminding employees to turn faucet off tightly
and conducting regular inspection and maintenance of water
facilities.

X

KR AEEERERCE—EZ
BR - REERMAETMELEE
% MYEAZHKIHEFSE
ZYEERR TN RETER
FRIERT NEESKRMEAE
EEAKEE - RRAARERNAE
BB NP S N SR AC R AR EUE o
BE WL - ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁmﬁﬁm
P S EKBEHARIBN - e
TRERK o &ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@%@
EHRERESRE ZEKEH
Blane iE e B 8 2K 5258 LA J2 7E B
IRE R EHIKERIE -

EREREMARAR

2022 4 R 49 —



= |
o
[

—— 50

A3.

A4,

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group’s two main operating segments: (i) property
mortgage loans and (ii) personal loans have no significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.
Notwithstanding, we continue to enhance the environmental
awareness of our employees, customers, shareholders and
business partners and enlist their supports in improving our
environmental performance. With the integration of policies
and measures to reduce air pollutants and GHG emissions,
waste generation and resources consumption, we strive
to enhance environmental sustainability and minimise our
impacts on the environment. We will review our environmental
policy from time to time and will consider implementing further
eco-friendly measures and practices in order to enhance
environmental sustainability.

CLIMATE CHANGE
Governance

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based on the
nature of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts
of climate change, including extreme weather events, or
damage to facilities have immediate operational impacts
and are treated as operational risks. Long-term challenges,
such as emerging ESG issues and climate-related risks and
opportunities, may be discussed by the ESG Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board
meetings and ensures that they are incorporated into our
strategy.

To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills
to oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our
Board also seeks professional advice from external experts
when necessary to better support the decision-making
process.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets for
the Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as well
as gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both disclosure
and policy relative to the best practice standards. Moreover,
the ESG Working Group works closely with the Group’s
different operation departments, with an aim to develop
consistent and enhanced approaches on addressing ESG
risk issues and report to the management.

Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity
of certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts
resulting from natural disasters. We assess the overall level of
risk by taking into consideration a range of diverse risk factors
across the many categories in our product or services range.
This diversity of risk is combined with our business strategy
and broad geographic footprint helps us distribute risk and
provide protection against the impacts of short-term climate
change effects.

Our services continue to provide protection for people in
our communities against weather and heat-related disease.
Besides, we continue to explore opportunities to engage our
business partners and encourage them to develop climate
resilience and reduce their operational carbon footprint by
taking into consideration of different climate-related scenarios,
including a “2°C or lower scenario” through the following
steps:

Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change
Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes, such
as stricter policies including the introduction of and increases
in carbon pricing, as well as advances in technology and
changes in customer awareness. In light of these climate
change effects, based on the International Energy Agency
(“IEA”) scenarios and others, we developed multiple future
images as the external environment that will surround our
Group.
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With regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in case where
climate change measures do not progress and where such
measures progress further “Beyond 2°C scenario”.

Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the
future images developed in Step 1. We believe that it will be
possible to expedite carbon dioxide reduction effects in our
society.

With regard to the effects on raw material procurement and
production, introduction of and increases in carbon pricing is
anticipated in accordance with the global advance of climate
change measures, leading to the possibility of higher raw
material procurement and production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change
measures are not adequate throughout society, production
interruptions and supply chain disruptions are likely to
increase as a result of higher frequency and intensification of
natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Qur Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-
renewable energy in our daily operation. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each demand
for the regions where the emission factors of purchased
electricity consumptions are high. By promoting real carbon
emissions reductions throughout the world through these
types of initiatives, we are working to achieve zero carbon
emission in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive
energy-saving and introduction of renewable energy. With
respect to renewable energy, in particular, we have set a new
target, achieve a reduction rate for purchased electricity in
coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability
and progress of the Group’s strategies, we believe that we
will have opportunities for stable funding and sustainable
increases in corporate value through appropriate information
disclosure, dialogue with institutional investors and other
stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to
test the existing risk management strategies under climate
change with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas
where new strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert knowledge,
which can identify how climate change may compound
existing risks or create new ones. The risk assessment is
conducted through the following steps:

Step 1: Establish the context

o Objective/goal

o Scale

° Time frame

o Climate change scenario for most climate variables and
sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)
° Identify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in
the past in the area

° Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard
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Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities

o Explore climate change projections for the selected
time frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

° |dentify potential hazards

° Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may
get worse under future projected changes

° Identify new risks that can emerge under future
projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e. geographical
areas, business operation, assets, ecosystems, etc.) that has
the potential to be at risk in future.

As outlined within the Governance section above, the
Group has robust risk management and business planning
processes that are overseen by the Board in order to identify,
assess and manage climate-related risks. The Group engages
with government and other appropriate organizations in order
to keep abreast of expected and potential regulatory and/or
fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in regard
to monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our daily
operation. However, there remains gaps in understanding
how such climate risks and opportunities may impact our
operations, assets and profits. Our Group assesses how the
business addresses climate change risks and opportunities
and takes the initiative to monitor and reduce their
environmental footprint.
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Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related
physical risks and transition risks, which have impacted
and/or may impact our Group’s business and strategy in (i)
operations, products and services, (ii) supply chain and value
chain, (i) adaptation and mitigation activities, (iv) investment
in research and development, and (v) financial planning, as
well as the steps taken to manage these risks, are as follows:

gl

BEXREHEBESEE

REREHA - BE N KATBEEE A
EEEG)ZE - EmMRE (i) #
JEGE R BEGE (i) EEREEE
B (v ERE RV HEES
EHHEEAZENRIEBEBNER
BEERRMBERR  UEAERE
ZERBMAERAEREHSNNT

Climate-related risks description  Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

Acute physical risks

=EEBRER

° Increased severity and ° Operating cost increases
frequency of extreme BB AR N

weather events such as
tropical cyclones, floods
and earthquakes, the
frequency and severity of
traffic accidents. These have
the potential to cause both
idiosyncratic and systematic
risks, resulting in non-
favourable financial impacts.
13 o KSR (IR EVS SRUBE
//\7}<)Siiﬂz ) B BR E M RN AE
3B A R E A bFE
TN o ZEIBE NI AIEE
BEKRERRS IEE’JFL
MMmEETH BB

° Increased likelihood and ° Revenue decreases
severity of wildfire. Financial Wz R

loss occurs as there are
interruptions of supply chain,
logistics and transportation.
B NE PR RERE M
N o HEE - YR KB &
PETRTRESI B ISR K -

1% 16 28 o B Y e g 37 #EE 2% B b T EREU Y e
Physical Risk
BERRRE

o Planned to establish a

o Planned to adopt scenario
analysis to disclose an
organization’s planning
under future scenarios,
most notably one with in a
2°C scenario.
SERABR S TIARKRE
R E R RIE R ET
2l EHEI2CESR
B FERIETE

natural disasters emergency
plan and to provide certain
trainings to the staff.
AEGIEREAKNETREZA
R R[A8 THRHEE TE -
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Climate-related risks description

R.16% 161 B8 L B Y ot

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

HEEZ SRR REAYE 5

Chronic physical risks
et B E R

Extreme variability in weather
patterns. Frequent extreme
weather events and rising in
sea levels are likely to pose
disruptions to communities
across the region over the
long term, affecting economic
output and our service
continuity.
KRB H R Al B o 1
RERF - HEHRIERER
SHRETE EATEEE
B E 3[R A 4 [ SRR T
BB E L MBI RB
AN -

The scarcity of natural
resources due to
deforestation may lead to

the increase in the cost of
material consumed in our
business operation.
BRI EKNEAE
R A e BB R PG E
ERTAL BB AN LR o

Revenue reduces from
decreased service capacity
and the negative impacts of
workforce

RIEEN TR T AZE
MAEZESBURSERD

Operating cost increases

BB N

Planned to develop a risk
tolerance statement and/

or system authorised by

the Board, including an
establishment of a written
climate risks management
policy.
SEHETEEERENR
BRI NBRARHR
#t o BIEHEEER IR E
bR EIRBUR o

Engaged with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local
resilience.

Bt b 77 53 K& ) BE 3 75 5k B
KBTARE D EE

A
/A °

Further enhanced the
climate-related risk

policies, and included the
measurement, monitoring
and management of the
climate-related risks.
E-—SHEREHAENR
DK PRERKARR
MEETE  BERRERE -
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Climate-related risks description

$R.16% 16 B8 L B Y ot

Financial Impact

E/
oa

Steps taken to manage the risks
REBEZZRR MR EE

Transitional Risk
PENERE

Policy risk
R L

The government may restrict
the use of the traditional fuel
vehicles by the environmental
services sector and provide
the allowances to those
entities which purchase
hybrid vehicles.

BT 38 & 3 38 3R 3% IR 7% &6 P
PR Il 6 PR AR R 0 )R =
THEERAB N TENE
24 T#hEkL -

Operating cost increases
for the increased insurance
premiums paid by the
Group.
AEBEFRNRBREL NG
BB ERCARIE N -

Planned to acquire more
hybrid vehicles for the
business operations to
obtain the corresponding
allowances and subsidies.
TEIBEEZRESNA
BRAREBES  UERF
MEER)FHBE RN B ©

Monitor the updates of

the relevant laws and
agreements, to avoid the
unnecessary increase in
cost and expenditure due to
non-compliance.
ERERE R EONE
ER BREEERST
VERKARFAZIENM

ERFEKREERLA
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Climate-related risks description

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

° Exposure to litigation risk. We
have to adapt the tightened
law and regulations issued
by the government due to
climate change. Our Group
is exposed to the risk of
litigation once we fail to
obligate the new rules.

FRARER - AR RIEEL -

BAMRBRBTRMEE

BARHERROER - —B KR

BEESTH AR BIAKE®
Dﬁ*/\}—ugun °

° Enhanced emissions-
reporting obligations. We may
have to spend much time on
fulfilling the ESG reporting
standards to comply with the
new regulation.

o BER R E EK - HAFIA]
EERETEBEAERMAEBUR
5 -ugkEamEEL
VA SFRTEV IR o

Operating cost increases
for high compliance costs
and increased insurance
premiums for the Group.
BREARERAEBRR
B IR INBE L ER AL N

AR A BA R B Yy 2 REBEZZRR MR EE
Legal risk
ERRER

Monitored the updates

of environmental laws

and regulations and
implemented GHG
emissions calculations in
advance.
ERRBEAEREEANE
B RATETRER
BEHERAETE -
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Climate-related risks description  Financial Impact

R.16% 161 B8 L B Y ot MBRE

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERARMERRNEE

Technology risk
Pt

More green building strategies
with low-carbon, energy-
saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

FZ ABER - SR
HERRRBEEARITR
o RESBIRAIBERHISH K

PR ERFES

Market risk
35 [ B2

The government and
environmental services

sector are considering
climate-related risks and
opportunities, which may
lead to changes in customers
preference.

B RERRERE P EEE
J SR 16 A8 A ) L B B 43
ERRERENEPRIFES

Inability to attract co-
financiers and/or investors
due to uncertain risks related
to the climate.
== N R O R S e
% XS BB S IERH
R/ SIREE o

Capital investment in
technology development
increases.

RATFAENEARRER

Operating cost increases
due to the adoption of green
technologies
RAGERMBEEEK
AIE N o

Revenue decreases for the
change in revenue mix and
sources.

WamE W w=mAE RRIRA
BILAAD «

Operating cost increases

as abrupt and unexpected
shifts in energy costs.
EERAREIRK AR R
AREINE AN -

Examined the feasibility

and efficiency of applying
the latest environmental
technologies, to raise the
feasibility and scientific
efficiency of energy saving
for the business operations.
EERARTRERRME
AITIERIRREE RS ER
EEREAEH AT RE

B -

Fulfil the climate-related
regulations by the
government.

FE 17 BUR P78 5 B9 SR 1 4
R ER B -

Make climate change as a
high concern in the market
decisions to show to the
customers that our Group

is concerned about the
problem of climate change.
B RIRBCIERTIHAK
PHEEBEEE AEP
RAREEH RKRE(CH
BT -
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Climate-related risks description

$R.16% 16 B8 L B Y ot

Financial Impact

E/
oa

Steps taken to manage the risks
REBEZZRR MR EE

Reputational risk
BEE R

Shifts in consumer
preferences. More

customers are considering
climate-related risks and
opportunities, which may
lead to changes in customer
preference for the more
environmentally-friendly
business.
HEERINEE - FZ2X
P Z R R k8RR &%
B TR ELREFAE
RREBONEE -

Stigmatization of our business
sector, such as more negative
stakeholder feedback.
BPWNEBRAERSE
Pl EN A EREIES -

Negative press coverage
related to support of business
activities with negative
impacts on the climate

(e.g., GHG emissions,
deforestation, water stress).
HYFHRBEEAETEN
7 5% 2 AR B &) B T 3T E R
Z(Hm RERBHMN - &
MK - AKER) o

Revenue decreases from
decreased demand for
services and the decrease in
service capacity.

Rk 7% 75 SKORL > K AR 75 B
TR D o

Operating costs increases
from negative impacts on
workforce management and
planning.
SEhERLRENAEE
BB EER AL -

Fulfilled the social
responsibility by organizing
more activities or executing
actions to demonstrate how
we place importance on
climate change.

BT 2R BN REITE
& AP R ] E AR R A B
£ NtBEITHEERE -

Avoided of supporting the
projects or activities which
may have detrimental effects
to the climate.

R PR ARHRIRES
AHFENEB FED -
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During the reporting period, the primary climate-related R¥REHAR - BRIRAEEN E Ei
opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts were BRAEHTBEENT
as follows:

Detailed description of

climate-related opportunities Financial Impact

RIZEBAMIE AR 837

Resource efficiency

BERBE

o Reduce water consumption o Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
R IKEIRE)ERE and cost reductions

BBEAERRDEERAN

Energy source

BEIR AR

o Use of lower-emission fuel sources o Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
5B R HE U B SR cost abatement

e Use of supportive policy incentives FERE BRI R > & @A
AR BUER R e Returns on investment in low- emission technology

° Use of new technologies increases
15 A #hHl R HE AT & [ $745 hn

Products and services

EmRR%

° Development of climate adaptation and ° Revenue increases through new solutions to
insurance risk solutions adaptations needs, such as insurance risk transfer
Il TE SR 3 B K AR B R PR R R T 2R products and services

e Ability to diversify business activities FiRRERAREY E M R IRTE S EIET KA AR
Z b EBEEE B R ERIE NN AR
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Detailed description of
climate-related opportunities

Financial Impact

° Participation in renewable energy programs
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures
S BT BA AR 8 MERERETRe e

o Resource substitution or diversification

BEREREZ T

RIREEERB A AR 837
Markets
5
° Access to new markets ° Revenue increases through access to new and
EAFTS emerging markets
R A Fh ) KO BT 5 48 iR
Resilience
i

° Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and buildings
FIBIMER R - T3 B FEEIEARBIE T
kA

o Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increases
R S R RGN T EER e 1155

° Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

2 B HECR 5% AR BE AR E am M ARG5S hdiaR

Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage
climate-related risks and opportunities. The energy
consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
indicators are the key metrics used to assess and manage
relevant climate-related risks where we consider such
information is material and crucial for evaluating the impact of
our operation on global climate change during the year. Our
Group regularly tracks our energy consumption and GHG
emissions indicators to assess the effectiveness of emission
reduction initiatives, as well as set targets to contribute our
effort to have minimal impact on global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target applies and
base year from which progress is measured are described
in the section A1: “Emissions” and section A2: “Use of
Resources” of this Report. Our Group adopts absolute
target to manage climate-related risks, opportunities and
performance.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

B1.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group believes people are our most important asset to
the continuing development and success of our Group. As
such, we aim to attract and motivate talents, maintain a safe
and equal working environment and promote health and
well-being of our employees. We pay special attention to its
employees’ rights and strictly complies with the Employment
Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance, and other relevant
regulations in Hong Kong. The staff handbook covers our
Group’s standard in respect of compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare.

The Group strives to construct a diverse and inclusive
workplace where all our employees are treated with dignity
and respect. We strongly oppose to all discriminatory
behaviour against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, race, colour, disability, creed, religion, sexual
orientation, marital status or family status. The principle of
equal opportunities is applied in all employment practices,
including but not limited to recruitment, promotion
and transfer, work allocation, benefits and training and
development.

The Group has formulated competitive remuneration
packages to retain and motivate employees in achieving
key goals of our Group. We provide remuneration for our
employees according to their qualifications, experience,
performance, job duties and service years as well as to the
market benchmark. We perform salary reviews on an annual
basis to ensure our remuneration practices are competitive
and aligned with market rates. In addition to salary, we
provide mandatory provident fund, allowances, required
social security benefits, medical benefits and variable
incentive-based remuneration such as discretionary bonus to
our employees. Employees are also entitled to various types
of leave including annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave
and paternity leave.

B.
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The Group acknowledges the importance of work-life balance
and strives to maintain a supportive and relaxing working
environment for our employees. We organise activities (when
appropriate) for employees to relax and to strengthen their
sense of belonging. In addition to those specified in the
Employment Ordinance, we provide paid or partially paid
leave and support services or activities for our employees to
handle urgent personal or family matters. We also provide
family care and supports to our employees and/or their family
members to bring a positive impact on their family life.

We are committed to building a pleasant working environment
to enhance the happiness of our employees. Our principal
subsidiary, Hong Kong Finance has received the “Happy
Company” 2018 logo issued by the Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation and the Hong Kong Productivity Council
as an encouragement for our commitment to create a happy
workplace for our employees.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on our Group relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare. Any changes of employment
terms will be notified to staff and agreed in writing to protect
the lawful rights and interests of all employees.
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As at 31 March 2022, the employee compositions (in
percentage) by gender, employee category, age group,
geographical region, employment category and employment
mode were as follows:
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For the year ended 31 March
BZ3HASIHLEE

Employee compositions 2022 2021

EEAMER 2022 % 20214

By gender

gkl E-B)

o Male 51% 54%
S

° Female 49% 46%
g

By age group

RERERE D

o Age 30 or below 14% 11%
30RRIAT

° Age 31-40 44% 46%
31E405%

o Age 41-50 16% 19%
41 E505%

o Age 51 or above 26% 24%
51 B3 E

By geographical region

&t EE 5

o Hong Kong 100% 100%
E

By employment category

REBERNE S

° Senior management 21% 24%
BAREEE

o Middle management 28% 35%
hRERE

o General staff 51% 41%
ERES

By employment mode

REREAS D

o Full-time staff 100% 100%
EBRET

° Part-time staff - =
FBET

EREEEREARAR
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The employee turnover rates by gender and age group at the RIEHR - LR R FERAR 2
end of the reporting period were as follows: EERKLLENAT :

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MALEE

Turnover rates (%) 2022 2021

K EEE (%) 2022 F 20214

By gender

g IR

o Male 14% 16%
S

° Female 16% =
g

By age group

RERERE D

o 30 years old or below 20% =
B0BREIAT

° 31-40 years old 12% 7%
312 40%%

° 41-50 years old 31% 29%
41 = 505%

o 51 years old or above 9% =
518 Ak

Overall 15% 9%

et
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B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY B2. RERHEZZ

The Group takes into consideration every precaution to
establish a healthy and safe working environment for its
employees. We place the highest priority on securing
the health and safety of all employees. In order to ensure
occupational health and safety of our employees, we strictly
comply with the rules and guidelines stipulated in the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance by the Labour
Department in Hong Kong and any other applicable laws and
regulations.

Besides, with the aim to provide and maintain a safe and
healthy working environment for employees, the Group
implements “Occupational Safety and Health Policy”
to protect them from work-related injury. We support a
culture that enhances the health and safety awareness
of our employees in order to minimise the risk of work-
related injury. We also provide medical benefits for our
employees and establish work arrangement for typhoon
and rainstorm warning. Besides, we place great emphasis
on the employees’ mental wellness. We provide information
and services regarding stress management and mental
wellness counselling for our employees to relieve stress and
to promote mental wellness.

During the reporting period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
had significant impact on our Group in providing a safe and
healthy working environment.

During the reporting period, there was no employee (2020:
nil, 2021: nil) injured and no lost day (2020: nil, 2021: nil) due
to work-related injuries. There was no fatality case (2020:
nil, 2021: nil) during the year. The Group will continue to
improve the safety management system in order to protect
employees’ health and safety in workplace.
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B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group believes that knowledge and skills of our
employees are vital to our continued business growth
and success. We have established a “Staff Training and
Development Policy” to support our employees in the
performance of their designated roles and help them to fulffill
their potential during the course of their employment. We
provide diversified on-the-job trainings for our employees and
continue to improve the training system in order to enhance
their requisite knowledge and skills in discharging their duties.

During the reporting period, the percentage of employees
trained by gender and employment category was as follows:
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KEIW* EAZ%HE%@&& )

& ﬁﬁaﬂ@ﬁihmﬁﬁf
BE] XFHEERXEHREET
EEBBELHBREEEES - ﬁ
PrEEREZ TIEEREI -
FERZHEIIHE - %I%Eﬁﬁ
TTBAE P75 AR B A RE -

Percentage of employees trained
ZIEEES

For the year ended 31 March
BES3HA3IALEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 £

By gender

g ezE-Bs)

o Male
E=]

o Female
g

By employment category

REBERNE S

o Senior management
BAREEE

° Middle management
hRERE

o General staff
ERES

Overall

Bt

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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29% 21%

26% =

11% 47%

53% =

28% 11%



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT = +=&=
m 15 VA N HiiER =
IRIE LG NEAWE gl] =
The detailed breakdown for employees trained in each of the D RIE MR KRB ERIEIS 2=
gender and employment category and the average training 1E B 40 IR B K B EXE R & 5>
hours completed per employee by gender and employee 2 EBREE TR Z TR 2R
category was as follows: ST
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3AIBLEE
Breakdown of
Average training hours employees trained in
(hours/employee) relevant categories (%)
19 5% 3| B B FZHI{E & R AEE
(N ER) HERIKEAA (%)
Training 2022 2021 2022 2021
23 2022 £ 2021 4 2022 F 20214
By gender
gk E-B)
o Male 0.6 1.2 55% 100%
S
° Female 0.5 = 45% =
g
By employment category
RERERE S
o Senior management 0.2 2.7 9% 100%
BRETEE
o Middle management = = = =
RRERE
o General staff 1.1 = 91% =
LimES
BEECEEEERLA
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B4.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the human rights of employees, and is
strongly against the employment of child labour and forced
labour. We strictly emphasise on the prohibition of engaging
child labour and forced labour. Adhering to the Employment
Ordinance and the Employment of Children Regulations in
Hong Kong, we strictly prohibit recruitment of individuals
under the age of 15. According to our “Human Resources
Policy Guidelines”, job applicants are required to present their
identity documents for age verification during recruitment
process.

The Group is committed to respecting the freedom of
employees and prohibiting all forms of forced labour. All work
should be performed on a voluntary basis and the working
hours are regulated in the staff handbook.

During the reporting period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to
recruitment of child labour or forced labour practices.

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a financial services provider, the Group mainly works with
third party services providers which provide services such
as information technology services, property management
services, advertising service and legal and consulting
services. We also work with suppliers that supply office
equipment, printing and stationery. During the primary
engagement process, we select more than one services
provider for comparison purpose and to ensure fair selection.
With the implementation of our “Environmental Procurement
Policy”, we strive to minimise our impacts on the environment
by supporting and giving priority to purchase recycled and
environmental-friendly products.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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B6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group regards service quality as a key competitive
advantage of its business. We continue to provide high-
quality services in order to enhance customer satisfaction.
We strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Money Lenders Ordinance,
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Trade Description
Ordinance and the Copyright Ordinance in Hong Kong.
During the reporting period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance regarding product responsibility.

Quality Management

The Group has implemented a “Quality Management Policy”
to ensure the continual delivery of high-quality services to our
customers. We continuously provide value-added features on
our websites, such as mortgage calculator, online property
valuation and online loan application, aiming to offer excellent
customer experience and surpass customers’ expectations
where possible.

The Group believes the opinions from customers can drive
our continuous improvement and are essential to our pursuit
for excellence. We welcome the opinions from customers by
establishing various communication channels with customers,
such as customer service hotline, email, WhatsApp, WeChat
and Facebook. We have also established a customer service
survey form on our website to understand the needs of our
customers and improve our service quality.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy

The Group acknowledges that data privacy is a critical issue
for financial services industry and we place great importance
on the data protection of our customers. We adhere to
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong and
take high precaution in ensuring data confidentiality to
avoid misuse or leakage of personal data. The confidential
personal data is handled with due care and kept in a locked
cabinet. We have incorporated our requirements into staff
handbook and requires employees to abide by the guidance
on prohibiting any unauthorised disclosure of confidential
information. In addition, we have included the purpose of
personal data collection in the loan application form to ensure
our customers are aware of it.
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B7.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to upholding the high standards
of business ethics and integrity in the conduct of our
Group’s business and operation. We strictly comply with all
applicable laws and regulations, including the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. Our standards towards
anti-corruption and business ethics, incorporated into the
staff handbook, are communicated and reinforced to our
employees. Employees shall not solicit or accept any forms
of bribing benefits, including banquets, cash, gifts, rebates
and commissions. If any case of suspected corruption or
other criminal offence is discovered, it will be reported to
the Independent Commission Against Corruption or other
relevant authorities.

The Group aims to avoid being directly or indirectly involved
in corrupt practices. Hence, we have established a “Guideline
on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing”,
which covers procedures for customer due diligence and
reporting suspicious transaction, to prevent and detect any
money laundering and terrorist financing.

Customer Due Diligence

Prior to accepting customers’ loan application, the Group
carries out Know-Your-Client procedures to verify the
identity of customers and assess the risks associated with
the customers by using documents, data and information
obtained from reliable and independent sources, such as
government and public authorities. We verify the identity of
individual customers by inspecting their Hong Kong Identity
Cards and proofs of residential address. For corporate
customers, we verify their identity by inspecting their
Certificates of Incorporation and/or Business Registration
Certificates.

In addition, the Group conducts checking on land register to
verify the ownership of the properties and ascertain whether
the properties are under any charges. For body corporate
customers, we enquire the ownership structures of the body
corporate. We do not allow anonymous customer account to
be set up, and loan repayments from customers are mainly
made by cheques or bank direct transfer with their own bank
accounts and payable to us or our solicitors.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Suspicious Transactions Reporting

Upon any suspected or confirmed case of property
representing the proceeds of crime or terrorist property,
employees are required to immediately report to the Group’s
top management in accordance with our internal guideline.
The Group will promptly report the suspicious transactions to
the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit® using the standard form
or e-channel “STREAMS”.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that had significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. There was no legal
case regarding corruption practices brought against our
Group during the reporting period.

COMMUNITY

B8.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a socially responsible corporate citizen, the Group strives
to contribute back to the society and bring a positive impact
on the community. A “Community Involvement Policy” is in
place to encourage and support community development
initiatives. Our principal subsidiary, HK Finance, has been
awarded the “Caring Company” logo by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for six consecutive years in
recognition of our contribution to society and serving of the
community by donating to different institutions.

In addition, the Group encourages its employees to dedicate
their time and skKills to participate in different voluntary
activities and be aware of community needs. We also
encourage our employees, customers and business partners
to make donations in supporting the sustainable development
of the community.

During the reporting period, the Group made donations to
various charities or foundations. The donation amount in HK
dollar is below:
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Name of Charity/Foundation (in English) Name of Charity/Foundation (in Chinese) HK$
REME HE2g8B(ED) REWE E28E8B(P0) BT
Po Leung Kuk Choi Kai Yau School REBEELER 500,000
Po Leung Kuk REB 328,000
Hong Kong Children in Need Foundation Limited ZEZFX#EZA S 50,000
Live Play Love Charity Company Limited EHAERERRAA 10,000

s Joint Financial Intelligence Unit is a unit jointly operated by the Hong Kong Police Force 3 HERE i&iﬁﬁﬁ REBREFATERRER
and the Hong Kong Customs and Excise Department. lts role is to receive, analyse HEREANER SWMERREIRIS8RE - WEH
and store suspicious transactions reports and to disseminate them to the appropriate AR FR/EZRBENAS MIKE -
investigative unit.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Koung Nam, aged 66, is our executive Director who was
appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan is also acting as a director
of various subsidiaries of our Company. He is the brother of Mr. Chan
Kwong Yin William and one of the founders of our Group. Mr. Chan has
extensive experience in money lending business and is responsible for
the strategic planning and overall development of our Group.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in the
section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
Shares and underlying Shares or any other associated corporation” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or short positions in Shares and
underlying Shares” respectively.

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, aged 57, is our executive Director who
was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan is also acting as a director
of various subsidiaries of our Company and is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Chan is the brother of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and one of the founders
of our Group. He has extensive experience in money lending business
and is responsible for overseeing our Group’s business operation and
development as well as monitoring our Group’s corporate strategy
and administration. He also supervises the formulation of our Group’s
marketing strategy and the execution of the relevant marketing programs.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in the
section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
Shares and underlying Shares or any other associated corporation” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or short positions in Shares and
underlying Shares” respectively.

Mr. Tse Pui To, aged 56, is our executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Tse
joined our Group in 2002 and is responsible for managing our Group’s
business operation with focus on our loan sales, aftersales activities and
other administrative functions. Prior to joining our Group, he worked
as and held senior positions in various financial institutions. Mr. Tse
possesses extensive experience in corporate finance activities and
business promotions.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENANERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond, aged 57, is our independent non-
executive Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Currently
Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive director of Quali- Smart
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1348), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Phoenitron Holdings Limited (stock code: 8066), the
shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Nature Home Holding Company Limited (formerly known as Nature
Flooring Holding Company Limited) (stock code: 2083), from 4 May 2011
to 31 October 2021, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chan possesses solid experience in the profession of accounting,
taxation, finance and trusts. He obtained a bachelor of economics degree
from the University of Sydney. Mr. Chan is a member of both HKICPA
and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants.

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry, aged 50, is our independent non-executive
Director, who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Currently Mr. Chu
is an independent non-executive director of each of Ten Pao Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1979) and AB Builders Group Limited
(stock code: 1615), the shares of these two companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also a managing director of
Halcyon Capital Limited which specialises in initial public offerings and
corporate advisory in mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Chu possesses solid experience in corporate finance and auditing.
He has worked for an international accounting firm and other corporate
finance departments of listed financial institutions in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Western Ontario in Canada
with a bachelor of arts degree, and from The University of Hull in the
United Kingdom with a master of business administration (investment
and finance) degree. He also obtained a diploma in accounting from the
School of Business and Economics of the Wilfrid Laurier University in
Canada. Mr. Chu is a member of HKICPA.

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, aged 64, is our independent non-executive
Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Cheung is also a
practicing solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1993. Currently
he is a partner of S. H. Chan & Co., a solicitors’ firm in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University of
Hong Kong and a bachelor of laws degree from the University of London.
He was thereafter awarded the postgraduate certificate in laws by the
University of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hui Chun Ho Eric, aged 47, is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of our Group. Mr. Hui joined our Group in 2012 and is
responsible for the overall financial accounting and reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of our Group.

Mr. Hui possesses solid experience in auditing, financial accounting and
reporting, company secretarial matters and corporate finance matters.
Prior to joining our Group, he worked for an international accounting firm
and held several senior positions in other listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Hui is a fellow member of both The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and HKICPA, and an associate of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. He obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a master of business
administration with distinction from The University of Manchester, United
Kingdom.

Ms. Wong Sze, aged 36, is the Managing Director — Head of Personal
Loan of our Group. Ms. Wong joined our Group in 2017 and is
responsible for managing, developing and administering our Group’s
operation in personal loan business.

Ms. Wong possesses extensive experience in money lending industry, its
development and administration. Prior to joining our Group, she worked
for and held a senior position in a well-known money lending company in
Hong Kong.

Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree with first class honours
in social policy and administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

Mr. Chan Siu Fai, aged 59, is the Senior Mortgage Sales Manager of
our Group. Mr. Chan joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for
administering the mortgage loan sales and credit assessment of our
Group’s lending business.

Mr. Choi Tak On Jobby, aged 53, is the Senior Mortgage Sales Manager
of our Group. Mr. Choi joined our Group in 2005 and is responsible for
administering the mortgage loan sales and credit assessment of our
Group’s lending business.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Our Directors are pleased to present the report of the Directors together
with the audited financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of our Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of our subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of our
Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The results of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income”.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of our Company will be held on Tuesday, 6
September 2022 (the “AGM”). The notice of AGM, which constitutes part
of the circular to the Shareholders, will be published on the websites of
our Company and the Stock Exchange respectively and despatched to
our Shareholders together with our Company’s 2022 annual report in due
course.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK1.3 cents per Share for the six months ended
30 September 2021 had been paid to our Shareholders on 18 January
2022. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.3 cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2022, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the AGM. The proposed final dividend will be
paid on Friday, 7 October 2022.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods, and no transfers of shares of the Company will be
effected during such periods:

(i) from Thursday, 1 September 2022 to Tuesday, 6 September 2022,
both days inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of ordinary shares of
the Company, duly accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Union Registrars Limited (the
“Branch Share Registrar”), at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 31
August 2022; and
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(i) from Tuesday, 13 September 2022 to Thursday, 15 September
2022, both days inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2022. In order to determine entitlements to
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of ordinary shares of the
Company, duly accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Branch Share Registrar at the address
set out above for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 9
September 2022.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by our Group during the year
amounted to HK$888,000 (2021: HK$145,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of our business review as at 31 March 2022 are set out in the
preceding section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of our principal properties held for investment purposes are set
out in the section headed “Schedule of Investment Properties”.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the share issued in the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out
in Note 26 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of our Company at 31 March 2022, calculated
under the legislation applicable in Company’s place of incorporation,
amounted to HK$376,146,000 (2021: HK$371,760,000) before the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the Share Option Scheme is set out in this section headed
“Share Option Scheme”. No share options were granted or outstanding
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige our Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group for
the last five financial years is set out section headed “Five-year Financial
Summary”.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
those participants who made contributions to our Group with a view to
motivating them and/or attracting and retaining them for the long term
growth of our Group. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to any Director (whether
executive or non-executive or independent non-executive), employee
(whether full time or part time), officer, consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to our Group or any entity in
which our Company or any subsidiary holds any interest whom the Board
determines on the basis of contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of our Group.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of an
option (the “Offer Date”), which must be a business date; (b) the average
closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of our
Company.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option.
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The total number of shares of our Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (exclusive of options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of our Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of our Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders.

Our Company may seek approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit set out hereinabove such that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of our Company under the limit as refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval
to refresh such limit. Share options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such limit as refreshed.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of shares
as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No option may
be granted under this Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of our Company if it would result in the above-mentioned 30%
limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued shares for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Board to each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No further
options may be granted more than 10 years after 4 September 2013.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 4 September 2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no option was granted or agreed
to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 March
2022, there were no outstanding share options.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of our Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Koung Nam
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of our Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director shall be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Tse Pui To (Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
(independent non-Executive Director) will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

Our Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Our Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent during the year ended 31
March 2022 and up to the date of this Directors’ Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than three months prior written
notice or otherwise in accordance with the service agreement. Each of
the executive Directors will receive a monthly salary subject to annual
review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Board.
Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a discretionary bonus
as may be determined by the Board and the remuneration committee
of the Board after each completed year of service provided that the
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses payable in each financial year
to all executive Directors shall not exceed five per cent of the audited
consolidated net profit attributable to owners of our Company but before
extraordinary or exceptional items of the relevant financial year. Each of
the executive Directors is also entitled to a guaranteed bonus which is
equivalent to one-month salary.

Our Group has provided quarters located in Hong Kong to executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William
as part of the remuneration of their directorships in our Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with our Company for an initial term of two years and
shall extend for such periods unless terminated by not less than three
months (save for the notice period which is one month for Mr. Chan Siu
Wing Raymond) prior written notice or otherwise in accordance with the
relevant letter of appointment. The annual fees payable by our Company
to the independent non-executive Directors is an aggregate amount
according to the letters of appointment.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of our Company has a service contract with
period unexpired with our Company which is not determinable by our
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Option Scheme above, at no time
during the year was our Company, nor any of our subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or our parent company a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of our Company or any other body corporate; and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of our Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO OUR
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which our Company, any
of our subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or our parent company was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any business
which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to compete with the
business of our Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every Director of our
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of our Company from and against any liability
incurred by them or any one of them as holder of any such office or
appointment to a third party.

A permitted indemnity provision is in force as at the date of this report
and was in force throughout the year for the benefit of all the Directors
pursuant to the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance arranged by our
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
in the preceding section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company, which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
since the publication of the annual report of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

EEREREEBZEERE

EELRARERBZEEABHNAIAIRE
RIEENEREEEIA -

EEEREE
ETBAATNEHE2021E3 A31 BIEFBAF
B2 EHUAR - 1B EHREIE 13.51B(1) 1§
ATHBEZARRESEREEHHIMT

R

Name of Director Details of change

Ex=pnA BEFHE

Chan Siu Wing Raymond ° was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Natural Home
FR Ik E& Holding Company Limited (formerly known as Nature Flooring Holding
Independent Non-Executive Director Company Limited) (stock code: 2083), from 4 May 2011 to 31 October
BUHNTESR 2021, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

R2011ES5 A4 HE2021 F10 A3 HEZETABARARBEERER A
AI(ATHE : KERWIREBRBER AR (RBEEXSAERLEMZAA])
(AR R5R : 2083) 2 B IEHTTES »

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be

disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and/or short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of our Company in the Shares and
underlying Shares of our Company and our associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were (i) recorded in the
register kept by our Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (i)
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code, were as follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

gl

EERBETHRAERROKRMEBER
DREMEMAABEB 2 EER, R

NP
RE

MR2022F3A31H ' ARAIZTEERESIT
BRABRARRRERE LB (EZRLEFR
HEEHIZE XV ER) 2 B ARG HEE ()R
BBERE KIS ERTEARATNFEY
Atz R R RIKRE (i) RIE
BEHEREEENEXVEET 8D EARIE
EFRIZHEEE NS AR B R 2w
/KRBT

RAEQT z#H(FE)

Number of Shares and

underlying shares held ('000)

Fr R 40
HERGHE (TR)

Total
Interestin (% of the issued
Shares/ Beneficial a controlled share capital
Name of Directors Equity derivatives owner corporation of the Company)
e
37 REZE (GEAQREHRT
EEnA RIESTETIR BERBEEA EE R RAZBE L)
Chan Koung Nam Ordinary shares - 300,000 300,000
BRytRE Rk (Note Fit&E) (72.29%)
Chan Kwong Yin William Ordinary shares 5,760 300,000 305,760
PR B il (Note Bfi#¥) (73.68%)

Notes: Bzt -

These shares of the Company are held by Tin Ching Holdings. Each of Mr. Chan Koung Nam
and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching Holdings. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, both Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong
Yin William are deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Tin Ching
Holdings is interested or deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors or the chief executive
of the Company had registered any interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than a director or chief executive of our Company), who
had interests and/or short positions in the Shares or the underlying
Shares of our Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRPRRORAEBERD 2 &
RRHKR

M2022F3HA31H  BESZMA - LTAL
(ZK@ET%%EJZ%%GE&A%Bﬁéﬁh)%ﬁaﬁﬂ
a2 IR0 s A8 B It mRSRKkE A
BRI & %&%fﬂﬂﬁﬂéﬁXV*ﬁ%Q&3"*52
BT IAETE - SIRIBEEH K& B E 5515 336
BEHRERBRAEFEZ ZLMA

Number of Shares and

underlying shares held ('000)

Fr R 40 &%
HERGHE (TR)
Total
Interestin (% of the issued
Name of substantial Shares/ Beneficial a controlled share capital
shareholders Equity derivatives owner corporation of the Company)
e
FTERR B3, REZEH (ERATSBIT
=t RIESTETIR EREAA EEER RAZB L)
Tin Ching Holdings Ordinary shares 300,000 - 300,000
ReBiER el (72.29%)
Chan Koung Nam Ordinary shares = 300,000 300,000
BRI il (72.29%)
Chan Kwong Yin William Ordinary shares 5,760 300,000 305,760
RN E Limm (73.68%)
Head and Shoulders Ordinary shares 20,772 - 20,772
Global Investment T (5.01%)
Fund SPC — HS
Powered Alpha
Segregated Portfolio
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, there was no other [ £ X AT 5 & 40 » 7R 202293 A31H

person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administrative of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of our Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, our top five customers (as determined by interest income
generated) accounted for approximately 7.6% (2021: 9.6%) of our total
revenue, and our single largest customer accounted for approximately
2.2% (2021: 2.2%) of our total revenue.

All of our top five customers were third parties independent to our
Company and its connected person(s) or associate(s). To the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, none of our Group,
our Directors, members of our senior management, and their respective
associates and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued
Shares, had any interest in or financial or business relationship with any
of our Group’s top five customers during the year ended 31 March 2022.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of our Controlling Shareholders, namely Tin Ching Holdings, Mr.
Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, has entered into a
Deed of Non-competition in favour of our Company, pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally,
undertakes and covenants with each of our Company and our
subsidiaries that as long as the Shares remain so listed on the Stock
Exchange and he/it and his/its associates, individually or collectively with
any other Controlling Shareholder(s) is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 30% or more of the Shares in issue, or is otherwise regarded as a
Controlling Shareholder (as that term is defined under the Listing Rules
from time to time) of our Company, each of the Controlling Shareholders
shall not, and shall procure that none of his/its associated (excluding any
members of our Group) shall, among others:

(@ directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business in competition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business activity and any business activities undertaken by
our Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business”) which any
member of our Group may undertake in the future in Hong Kong
except for the holding of not more than 5% shareholding interests
in any listed company in Hong Kong;

(b)  take any direct or indirect action which constitutes an interference
with or a disruption to the Restricted Business including, but not
limited to, solicitation of the customers, suppliers or staff of our
Group; and

gl
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(c) exploit his/its knowledge or information obtained from our Group to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the business carried on by our
Group from time to time.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the Controlling
Shareholders on compliance with each of their respective undertakings
under the Deeds of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders and
confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is fully complied with and
duly enforced during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transaction, which also constituted
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules, entered into
by our Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 is contained in Note
33 to the financial statements.

The following summarised continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2022. The Directors confirm
that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Fully exempted continuing connected transaction

On 1 April 2021, HK Finance (as borrower), our Company (as guarantor)
and Tin Ching Industrial (as lender) entered into the loan agreement,
pursuant to which Tin Ching Industrial agreed to provide the loan facility
of up to HK$200,000,000 to HK Finance for the money lending business
of our Group at an interest rate of 0.5% per annum over the HK$ prime
rate quoted by DBS (Hong Kong) Limited for a term subject to review by
Tin Ching Industrial at any time but in any event no later than one year
after the date of the loan agreement.

As Tin Ching Industrial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tin Ching Holdings
which is the substantial Shareholder of our Company and is a connected
person (as defined under the Listing Rules), accordingly the loan
agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction for providing
financial assistance to our Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, as the loan facility is provided by Tin Ching Industrial
for our Group’s and Shareholders’ benefits, and on normal or better
commercial terms to our Company where no security over our Group’s
assets is granted in respect of the loan facility, the loan agreement
as continuing connected transaction is fully exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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The aforesaid continuing connected transaction has been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors of our Company. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction was entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of our Group and under arm’s length negotiations; (b)
either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to our
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and (c)
in accordance with the loan agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of our Shareholders as a whole.

Our Directors confirms that our Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
connected transactions to which our Company was a party during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to our Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of its issued shares in the Stock Exchange throughout the
year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of our Company have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 N % BAID R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HONG KONG FINANCE GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Finance Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which set out
on pages 97 to 172, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2022;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

* the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit relates to impairment assessment

of loans and interest receivables.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEFTNAEERRETSH

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables

JER BT FB R B

Refer to Note 3.1(b), 4(a), 21 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
RIMAR AT ERERMFESA(D) ~ 4(a) ~ 21 k22 -

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net loans and
interest receivables amounted to HK$930,469,000 and
HK$21,776,000, respectively.

MR2022F3A31H EEBZEREREFBFES
71174 930,469,000 % 7T & 21,776,000 & 7T

We assessed management’s assessment of provision for
impairment of loans and interest receivables by performing
the following procedures:

BB BBAT T DAL 7ot (4 B 28 FE 5t e W& 3 R A BOR
BEREEL 25

e  obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and assessment process of loss allowance for
expected credit losses and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

e THREBEYUEEEBRANEERERN RIS
R @E - WiE R E R T T HE EIRE R EAD
EEREREZKFE(HEMET 8T ik
XERERALIBMFZERE)FEERNERN
AR

° carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test
the existence and accuracy of the aging of loans
and interest receivables applied in the Expected
Credit Loss (“ECL”) model and as at the consolidated
statement of financial position date;

e  RERAREFEEBRXREN ZEBKEREFNENE
EMBRRR B RREEFE REBRITHIER
BRI T
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuead)

BRETEE®)

Key Audit Matter
HRBETSBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMEEREENEE

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
(Continued)
JEKE KT SR E T ()

Management assessed the provision for impairment of
loans and interest receivables based on the ECL model.
In developing the loss allowance of loans and interest
receivables, management use judgement in making
assumptions about the probability of default and loss given
default with reference to the historical delinquency ratio of
loans portfolio, collateral values used in the ECL model,
probability of default and current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors.

EREANES EERAEATAEKRER KT ERE
B ERHEEBRERRMNENEERER  TEERL
SEEFEGNBTHALE B EEEIER A
ERMEE  BOREUREEZBLERZNERER
RIBEEER - RS HENRERBOBAERELR

We focused on this area because the carrying value
of loans and interest receivables is significant to the
consolidated financial statements and management’s
impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
require the use of significant judgments and estimates.
HMZIR SR REREKRERRAEZ REESR
FEMBHREAMEEBEAN - MEEBHERER NN
BHURERT (4 T E R EARHE KRG -
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° checked the valuation methodology and approach
adopted by management in the ECL assessment;

e REBBEREFEERXITLRMAZMEERER
AR

° evaluated and challenged the appropriateness of the
key assumptions, such as historical delinquency ratio
of loan portfolio, collateral values used in the ECL
model, probability of default and current and forward-
looking information with reference to the historical
data and market economic data; and

o FHMARESRTIEBRRELEHE  fIN2ERTEHE
RS ESENERAENBTBERLE - FEE
EERAEAMAEARER BOREURRE
KATEMER : &

. re-performed management’s calculation of loss
allowance under ECL model which grouped together
all the receivables with similar risk characteristics
based on the probability of default, exposure at
default, loss given default, forward-looking information
and other significant factors taken into account in
estimating the ECL allowance.

s ENAEEEEYEGEERAEABTZERE
o BBEAKE  ELORR BOBEKE . FIE
MER ARG A EEERBRERER b E
AEEFEEMEEERBRSEECZ EBRRIEE
T

Based on the procedures described above, we considered
management’s judgments and estimates applied in the
impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
were supportable by management provided evidence.
BIE ERRF - BMIRATIEE TG ERER L ER
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 N % BAID R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME _

re T EWAR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z= 202243 A31 AL FE

gl

2022 2021
2022 20214
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
iz TER FHET
Revenue & 6 153,488 155,503
Other income Embug A 6 1,394 3,902
Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation of R EYE 2 A FE
investment properties Wz, (BE) 17 8,980 (990)
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment FEWE ZURE (1), B E &
and write-off of loans receivable, net i sH F 58 7 (6,513) 2,394
Administrative expenses THAX 8 (53,060) (47,338)
Operating profit KRR 104,289 113,471
Finance costs BhE AR 11 (21,109) (25,676)
Profit before income tax BR FT 18 B Az R 83,180 87,795
Income tax expense PRISH XX 12 (12,630) (14,577)
Profit and total comprehensive AAREEAEMN
income for the year attributable to FEBINREZE
owners of the Company PNt 70,550 73,218
Earnings per share for profit AAREEAEMN
attributable to owners of wmRZERER
the Company
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE B 13 17.0 17.6
Dividends Bz B 14 10,790 10,790
The above consolidated statements of comprehensive income should be 3t 4R & & T U A 3K JE 32 [&] BE B B 51 — G 65

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARE BRI R

As at 31 March 2022 7202243 A 31 A

= |
o
[

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHxT FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 16 72,223 74,105
Investment properties KEYE 17 113,330 76,350
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEFFABGZEMERE
profit or loss 20 800 800
Loans receivable FE e 21 308,660 264,241
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 31 1,135 749
Total non-current assets FREBEEHE 496,148 416,245
Current assets REBEE
Loans receivable e E X 21 621,809 553,312
Interest receivables JE W ) 2, 22 21,776 16,981
Repossessed assets W e & E 23 7,248 33,557
Prepayments, deposits and TERHIE - EZE& Rk
other receivables E b pE U 3k I8 24 2,028 1,873
Tax recoverable AT Y [@ 518 3,184 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeKREEEY 25 24,882 80,023
Total current assets REBEEMSTE 680,927 685,746
Total assets EEMBE 1,177,075 1,101,991
Equity =
Equity attributable to the owners of AN T #EHE A ELES
the Company
Share capital i 26 4,150 4,150
Reserves ] 27 732,470 672,710
Total equity EREE 736,620 676,860

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
_._
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A ISR sainda )

As at 31 March 2022 7202243 A 31 A

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHxT FHET
Liabilities 8f&
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Other borrowings HAER 29 915 =
Bonds B 30 - 22,954
Deferred income tax liabilities BRI AE 31 3,301 3,168
Total non-current liabilities kRBEERE 4,216 26,122
Current liabilities REEE
Other payable and accruals Hib R IB R ERT B A 28 8,761 7,006
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e —RERRMEB R RRIA 33(b) 109,740 128,840
Tax payable FE( IR 1,952 8,248
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 29 292,875 177,058
Bonds B 30 22,911 77,857
Total current liabilities BB ERE 486239 399,009
Total liabilities EEHEE 440,455 425,131
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEEHASE 1,177,075 1,101,991
Net current assets RBEEFHE 244,688 286,737
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABESE 740,836 702,982

The above consolidated statements of financial position should be read 3t 45 & BF 75 AR 51 2% JE & [3] B8 B B 5 — G B
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. A e

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 172 were approved F97E172B 2GR AWK REABEET R

by the Board of Director on 28 June 2022 and signed on its behalf by: 2022 6 Ho8 Bt/ - WA TEEFREKE
= .
On behalf of the Board RERESE
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William Mr. Chan Koung Nam
PRIEE L& PREFE L&
Chairman Executive director
*E HITEF
BEREGEEEERARA

2022 4 R 99 —



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z= 202243 A31 AL FE

= |
o
[

Attributable to owners of the Company

NGIE 2SN
Share
Share Share Capital option Retained
Note capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
firsk RE  ROEE EARE BRERE REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TEx TER TER TER
Balance at 1 April 2020 R202054 B18 28 4,150 103,665 100,020 - 406,597 614,432
Total comprehensive FERXERALE
income for the year - - - - 73,218 73,218
Transactions with owners BRBEAZRS
Dividends relating to 2020 BHE2020F 2[R 8 14 - - - = (5,395) (5,395)
Dividends relating to 2021 BHE01F 2[R E 14 - - - - (6,395) (5,395)
Total transactions with owners, SEHEAZR 8%
recognised directly in equity ~ EERERRED - - - - (10,790) (10,790)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R202153 831 A 28 4,150 108,665 100,020 - 469,025 676,860
Balance at 31 March 2021 202153831 Bz &8 4,150 103,665 100,020 - 469,025 676,360
Total comprehensive FEXAKALE
income for the year - - - - 70,550 70,550
Transactions with owners RBRBAZRS
Dividends relating to 2021 BHE021F 2B 14 - - - - (5,395) (5,395)
Dividends relating to 2022 BB022EZ RS 14 - - - - (5,395) (5,395)
Total transactions with owners, BEEAZR5H%
recognised directly in equity ~ EHERERTER - - - - (10,790) (10,790)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2022%3 831 H 2 8 4,150 103,665 100,020 - 528,785 736,620

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

\\/T\ fﬁi /)L B2 ?%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z= 202243 A31 AL FE

ol =

2022 2021
2022 20214
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FExT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities E&EEKzRERE
Cash generated from operations KEMSIRE 15(a) 8,516 257,513
Interest paid ERFE (20,009) (24,378)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENBEABREH (22,362) (12,071)
Net cash (used in)/generated CEER(FTR),/ TSR & 5
from operating activities (33,855) 7 221 064 7
Cash flows from investing activities REEXK2RERE
Purchase of property, BEME  BELEE
plant and equipment (1,128) (1,979)
Purchase of investment properties BEREYHE (28,000) =
Net cash used in investing activities REEGFARESF %E 77777777777777777777777777777 (29,128) (1,979
Cash flows from financing activites BEX¥KHERE
Repayment of bank and EERITRAMBERK
other borrowings (962,063) (770,295)
Proceeds from new bank and FTIERIT REMIERATIS A
other borrowings 1,078,795 624,150
Increase in amount due to BN —RERRNBRRIEA
a fellow subsidiary N (19,100) 2,594
Redemption of bonds BEES (79,000) =
Dividend paid ERRE (10,790) (10,790)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBHME (AR FHE
in financing activites 7,842 (154341)
Net (decrease)/increase incashand BERBEEBEYWORD),
cash equivalents FEE (55,141) 64,744
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#1 2R & MRS EEY
of the year 80,023 15,279
Cash and cash equivalents at end FHRzBREeRESZEEY
of the year 25 24,882 80,023
The above consolidated statements of cash flows should be read in AR A IR 2 7 JE & B BE B Y 5 — OF B3
conjunction with the accompanying notes. =
BEREGEEEERARA

2022 % R 101 T



|

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 6 February 2013 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands. The address of
the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Tin Ching Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$°000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited

—— 102
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 i 2k P

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) for this financial year and the comparative
year.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@)  Amended standards effective in 2022 but not
relevant to the Group

HKAS39, HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

Interest rate
benchmark reform

HKFRS 16 (Amendment) COVID-19-related
rent concessions

gl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 2k P

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)
(b)  The following new and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the financial

year beginning on 1 April 2021 and have not been
early adopted by the Group

EXRSTHEBE D)

21 mEEEE)
AT ENBERRBEERN 22T
(&)
(b) THBERMEER2021
F451HE8ZHEKF
JE [ AR AR R AN
KIB PR .2 AT RAE
EETER

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after
R Bk
ZERKZ
FEHBEN

Amendments to HKAS 1

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

1 April 2023

AR EHERE1R(ER])

and Hong Kong Interpretation 5, Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains

a Repayment on Demand Clause

BESBRARDIERBARTERBESRIZY] 2023F4H1H

AR — 85K

ABHBRERERGEFNERE

b SR |
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice  Disclosure of accounting policies 1 April 2023
Statement 2 (Amendments)
BEGTENFEIRNK BRTEERAKE 20234 A1H
BEVBRELNER
HEE 25 (1BET)
HKAS 8 (Amendment) Definition of accounting estimates 1 April 2023
BRI EAESI(EF])  ErHHEHNER 2023%F 4 A1H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 April 2023
from a single transaction
EEGEAFE125R(18F]) RE-XFELCEERBBEEBRNERLTHE 20284 A1H
HKAS 16 (Amendment) Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before 1 April 2022
intended use
EEEEAFE 165 (ER]) WX BEIREB - (EREAERINMAETE 2022 418
HKAS 37 (Amendment) Onerous contracts — Cost of fulfilling a contract 1 April 2022
BHEGEAFEITHRUER]) BEAN-BISLHNKR 202264 A1H
HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Reference to the conceptual framework 1 April 2022
BBV BRELERE 35K BMESERZ = 2022%F 4 A1 8

(&7])
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 % B o
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAXASTHEREHSE#R)
(Continueq)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mAEEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 211 B BERBREER 28T
(Continuea) (#%&)
(b)  The following new and amended standards have ()  THRBERMEER2021
been issued but are not effective for the financial F41HFEZHBEFE
year beginning on 1 April 2021 and have not been JE A 2R AR R A [ T
early adopted by the Group (Continued) KIEBERWZ F 5T R 4%

(E5TER ()

Effective for
annual periods

beginning
on or after
R Bk
ZERRZ
FEHBEN
HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets between an investor Not yet
HKAS 28 (Amendments) and its associate or joint venture established
EBMBHELRE10E R KREFEEBEARNEGE RG] ZMHE G SEAva
BEEGTHERE 285 ZEEHENIRA
(1£37)
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts and the related amendments 1 April 2023
BB ELERE17 5] RGO RABEEET 2023F 4 A1H
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual improvements 2018-2020 cycle 1 April 2022
BRI ERE LR (EFT) 2018 4 & 2020 F 18 8 2 5 [£ itk 2022418
HK(IFRIC) — Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification 1 April 2023
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
8 (BR M sl E 28 2 BHEK - ERABHBFREREEGRK 2023F 4 A1H
ZEg) REFESH WEBRERSE
The above new and amended standards are not FEER Ll ¥ s R IEET
expected to have a material impact on the entity ERAE e R E psk
in the current or future reporting periods and on KRS B M AE AT RS

foreseeable future transactions.

KR ZFHERBEK
EREAFE -

ERFEKREERLA
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.3

—— 106

2.21

222

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to confirm with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of
the entities now comprising the Group that makes strategic
decisions.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 i 2k P

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices and residential
property for a director. Leasehold land classified as finance lease
and all other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

2 EXESHEESZE#R

24

2.5
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

245

2.6

—— 108

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Land and buildings 40-50 years
— Office equipment 4 years
— Furniture and fixtures 4 years
— Leasehold improvements 4 years
— Motor vehicles 4 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as “Fair value losses on revaluation of investment properties”.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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(Continueq)
2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets 2.7 kemEERE
Assets that have indefinite useful lives are not subject to EEERAFERFEHzEEDER
amortization and are tested annually for impairment. All assets e BESFETRENR - WE
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in EHBAsSBEREHERERER
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be gesmsEUE - BT E EEETTH
recoverable. An impairment loss is recongised for the amount BER:sT - REEEBIREERE
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable BEREEERW LS5 =% T AR
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair ReAEEEAEEATFERLE
value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of ERANBEFRABETIMRE LRSS
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels EH o HETRETGE  BEKR
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which AREREFBYRNTEHMEESNE
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or EHEZHRESR ARE Y o] #%5IIE
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets ERAFZHEEKFEGREELEE
other than goodwill that suffer an impairment are reviewed for RIVEDME - BHREIRBEZIESH
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. BEEERN)  BRZHREEH
FBER S ] AR EIEITIRET -
2.8 Financial assets 28 TWMEE
2.8.1 Classification 2.8.1 988
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following AEERESREENHEAMN
measurement categories: TErEHER
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value o HERAFEKEMZR
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and [ N R E- PN
=5
e those to be measured at amortised cost. o IRBEHENAFE o
The classification depends on the Group’s business model DERTERSCRHEENASE
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms EBEA LB EMEHIERR
of the cash flows. MmiE °
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will RBEAFEFENEEMS
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments W kBESRNEa EmE
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will EWAARR - LA IEFHEEE
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable BE=TAMNKREmMS @
election at the time of initial recognition to account BURRAEBRERVIIETER
for the equity investment at fair value through other e A A] el b 38 iR A A ET
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"). AEMEERA(MRDFEST
AHMZEBA D HRAEE
HIER ©
The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only AEBRREREEZSEE
when its business model for managing those assets MEBEXNEHREERIRE
changes. B
BEREGEEEERARA
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

—— 110

2.8.2

2.8.3

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement category into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continuea)

2.8.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains in
the period in which it arises.

2 EXESHEESZE#R
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.4

—— 112

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instrument
assets carried at amortised cost. The Group recognises a
loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

° An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

° The time value of money; and

° Reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Note 3.1(b) provides more detail of how the expected
credit loss allowance is measured.

Loans and interest receivables and repossessed assets
of the Group are classified as debt investments carried at
amortised cost and are subject to the ECL model.

While cash and cash equivalents, deposit and other
receivables are also subject to the impairment requirement
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continueq)

EXRSTHEBE D)

210 BRERKE RS

2.10 Loans and interest receivables

2.1

Loans receivable are property mortgage loans granted to
customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from property mortgage
and personal loans granted to customers in the ordinary course
of business.

Loan and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Other payables

Other payable are presents as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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(Continueq)

2.15 Borrowings

—— 114

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recongised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment properties
that are measured at fair value is determined assuming
the properties will be recovered entirely through use and
through sale for investment properties in Hong Kong.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

@

(b)

—— 110

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity, respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of reporting date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERSTTHEBMEE)
(Continueq)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continuead) 218 EEEF (&)
(c) Pension obligations (c) EHKRE&£EE
For employees in Hong Kong, the Group has a defined REEAEBEERG M

(d)

contribution plan. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.
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2.18 Employee benefits (Continuea)

—— 118

(d) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.20 Repossessed assets

2.21

There are two types of repossessed assets:

In the recovery of credit-impaired loans and interest receivables,
the Group takes ownership and control of the collateral assets
(e.g. through court proceedings) for release of the obligations of
the borrower. Repossessed assets are classified as non-current
assets held for sale when they meet the definition of non-current
assets held for sale and the recognition criteria under HKFRS 5.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of fair
value less costs of disposal and the carrying amount. The related
loans and interest receivables together with the impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated statement
of financial position upon the recognition of these repossessed
assets.

In situation where the Group obtains rights to rent or sell of the
underlying collateral assets in the recovery of credit-impaired
loans and interest receivables (e.g. through court proceedings)
but does not obtain ownership and control of the underlying
collateral assets, repossessed assets represent these credit-
impaired loans and interest receivables that are not derecognised
and continue to be measured at amortised cost less provision for
impairment under HKFRS 9.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

(@) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.22 Leases

—— 120

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term (Note 32). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term
on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. The
Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to various types of financial risks:
market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@

Market risk - Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its bank and
other borrowings, bonds and an amount due to a fellow
subsidiary. Bank and other borrowings and an amount due
to a fellow subsidiary issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset
by cash held at variable rates. Bonds issued at fixed rates
are not subject to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
to interest-rate risk. The Group manages its cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk mainly by adjusting the interest
rates on loans granted to customers.

As at 31 March 2022, if market interest rates had been 1%
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$2,793,775 lower/
higher (2021: HK$2,345,499), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on bank and other borrowings and
amount due to a fellow subsidiary carried at variable rates.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1

—— 122

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, loans receivable, interest receivables, deposits
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The carrying amount of
these balances represents the Group’s maximum exposure

to credit risk in relation to financial assets are as follows:
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(b) EERK
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ERBEEEY  REEFR
FEUH B ~ e RE MR
B BRECEREERR
ITHEERZEFEERAR - A
SRR EEREARER T X
P st & B4 2 i 1 R 2 SRR AE
EE b

2022 2021
2021 F 20204
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B EE FBT FET
Loans receivable FEUE K 21 930,469 817,553
Interest receivables JE YR B, 22 21,776 16,981
Repossessed assets U 61 & 23 7,248 33,557
Deposits and other receivables e K HAMEWIE 24 1,254 809
Cash and cash equivalents RE MRS FEY 25 24,882 80,023
985,629 948,923
() Credit risk management () EEERESE
Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents NREBKZER S NI
are deposited in major financial institutions located SEEMHEEREEER

in Hong Kong, which the Group’s management

believes are of high credit quality.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are offered.
If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses
the credit quality of the customer based on the
customer’s financial position, past experience and

other factors.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

)

Credit risk management (Continueq)

For property mortgage loans, the Group holds
collateral against loans receivable and interest
receivables in the form of mortgages over property.
The majority of the collateral are residential
properties, commercial properties and industrial
properties and all of the collaterals are located in
Hong Kong. Individual risk limits are set based on
the value of collateral provided by customers and
internal or external ratings in accordance with limits
set by the directors. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored.

The Group generally grants loans with a loan-to-
value ratio of no more than 70% of the value in the
valuation report of the property for first property
mortgage, and where it is a subordinate property
mortgage, the aggregate lending from all lenders to
the customer should not exceed 70% of the value of
the underlying property. Approval from the directors,
a credit manager and a credit officer are needed for
loans granted with a loan-to-value ratio that exceeds
70%. The directors meet regularly to review the
loan-to-value ratio and when (1) there is a significant
change in the property price index in Hong Kong; or
(2) when loans are renewed. The directors consider
that the credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables is significantly mitigated by the property
held as collateral, with reference to the estimated
market value of the property which were valued by
independent third-party valuers as at the end of the
reporting period.

In general, the loan officers of the Group propose to
management of the Company on a monthly basis
the amount of provision to be made.

For personal loans, the Group assesses the credit
quality of the customer based on the customer’s
financial position, past experience, internal and
external credit rating of the customers and other
factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1

—— 124

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

ECL measurement
HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for

impairment based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition as summarised below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-
impaired on initial recognition.

Stage 1:

Stage 2:  If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to Stage 2 but is

not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

Stage 38:  If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is then

moved to Stage 3.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL
measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from
default events possible within the next 12 months.
Investment in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL
measured based on expected credit losses on a
lifetime basis. A pervasive concept in measuring
ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9 is that it should
consider forward-looking information. The key
judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group
in addressing the requirements of the standard are
discussed below.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
one or more of the following criteria have been met:

° The borrower is more than 30 days past due
on its contractual payments.

The assessment of significant increase in credit
risk is performed on a monthly basis for all loans
and interest receivables held by the Group. The
criteria used to identify significant increase in credit
risk are monitored and reviewed periodically for
appropriateness by the directors and the credit
team. The Group has not used the low credit risk
exemption for any financial instruments in the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a loan as in default, which is fully
aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it
meets one or more of the following criteria:

° The borrower is more than 90 days past due
on its contractual payments.

° The borrower is deceased.
° The borrower is insolvent.

° It is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy.

The criteria above have been applied to all loans held
by the Group and are consistent with the definition
of default used for internal credit risk management
purposes. The default definition has been applied
consistently to model the Probability of Default (‘PD”),
Exposure at Default (‘EAD”) and Loss Given Default
(“LGD”) throughout the Group’s expected loss
calculations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(v)  ECL measuring techniques

—— 120

ECLs are the discounted product of the PD, EAD
and LGD defined as follows:

. PD represents the likelihood of a borrower
defaulting on its financial obligation.

° EAD is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default.

° LGD represents the Group’s expectation of
the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. It
varies by type of counterparty and availability
of collateral.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD
and EAD for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted
based on the forward-looking information.

The lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity
profile to the current 12-month PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio
from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based
on historical observed data and is assumed to be
the same across all assets within a portfolio. This is
supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined
based on the contractual repayments owed by the
borrower over a 12-month or lifetime basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BXEERKREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EMAZRE)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

V)

ECL measuring techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined
based the factors which impact the recoveries made
post default. For property mortgage loans, this is
primarily based on collateral type and projected
collateral values, historical discounts to market
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed. For personal loans, LGDs’
are typically set at product level due to the limited
differentiation in recoveries achieved across different
borrowers.

Forward-looking economic information is also
included in determining the 12-month and lifetime
PD, EAD and LGD.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation are
monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis. There
have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during
the reporting period.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1

—— 128

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(v

(vii)

Forward-looking information incorporated

The Group has established macro-economic forecast
model. The Group conduct forecasts regularly
to establish three economic scenario, optimistic,
neutral and pessimistic to ensure coverage of non-
linear features for the ECL model. Neutral scenario
is defined as the most probable situation which will
become benchmark for other scenarios. Optimistic
and pessimistic scenarios are possible scenarios
which are better and worse than neutral scenario
respectively. The Group uses internal and external
information to generate a neutral scenario. The
external information used includes economic data
and forecasts published by the government and
monetary authorities.

Other forward-looking considerations such as the
impact of any regulatory, legislative or political
changes have been considered but are not deemed
to have material impact and therefore no adjustment
has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is
reviewed and monitored for appropriateness on a
quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The allowance for credit losses is sensitive to
the inputs used in internally developed models,
macroeconomic variables in the forward-looking
forecasts, economic scenario weighting and
other factors considered when applying expert
judgment. Changes in these inputs, assumptions
and judgments impact the assessment of significant
increase in credit risk and the measurement of ECLs.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(vii)

(Vi)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table shows the impact on the
provision for ECL allowance on loans and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2022 by changing
individual inputs.

gl

BBEMREEE)
3.1 BBEBEEE)
(b) EERBRE)
Vi)  BREE ST ()
TRETER @A ST
BENE 2022F 3 A31H
ZEBEREF B ZE
SAHEERAREBITE -

Change in input on ECL model

Bt EERARA 2B ABELSD

Impact on the provision for ECL
allowance on loans and interest
receivables
HARBERERRFE 2

B EEEAREZRE

— Assuming a further 10% weighting added to the probability of ~— Decrease by HK$166,000
the optimistic scenario and a corresponding 10% weighting

reduction in the base scenario

— REEHBERNIEEFEININEE10% - XRERIBERE — #4 166,000 T

JERAEE10%

— Assuming a further 10% weighting added to the probability of ~— Increase by HK$776,000
the pessimistic scenario and a corresponding 10% weighting

reduction in the base scenario

— RREBBERNZEEEINRINEE10% - XRERIBERE — EHN776,000%E T

FERAHEE 10%
— Assuming the forecast collateral value increased by 10%
— RERFEAERREEEIN10%
— Assuming the forecast collateral value decreased by 10%
— BRRIEIERREERD10%

Credit risk exposure

The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of loans and interest receivables for
which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross
carrying amount of loans and receivables below also
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

— Decrease by HK$3,438,000
— B4 3,438,000 % T

— Increase by HK$10,017,000
— #$H110,017,000 % 7T
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea) 3 BMiEEREE &)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BRAKBEZEZ)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEREREE)
(viii)  Credit risk exposure (Continued) wiii) 15 EJE Bz (&)
Movements in gross balance of loans and interest EWRERLFE &Eiha
receivables: 2E 7 KA E)
Year ended 31 March 2022
BEZE2022F3A31 HILEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RR FE2MEER B3R #st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TERT

Balance as at 31 March 2021 M20214F3A31H

2R 686,872 59,417 109,665 855,954
New loans originated EER 541,937 36,396 21,808 600,141
Loans recovered or repaid during IR @l k(2 B B
the year (431,045)  (24,846)  (20,026)  (475,917)
Transfers from Stage 1to Stage 2 5 1 BEER 88 A 58 2 [ R (53,606) 53,606 - -
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 55 1 & B 88 A 28 3 P& B, (7,378) - 7,378 -
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 S 2 EREEA S 1 L& 1,009 (1,009) = =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 55 2 BAEX 85 A 28 3B - (4,252) 4,252 =
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 1 55 3F&ER#E A 25 1 FE B, - - - =
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 2 5 3BEER 8 A 58 2 [ - 4,301 (4,301) -
Total transfers between stages PRER - MR B (59,975) 52,646 7,329 -
Loans receivable directly written-off B il 4 FE Ut & 3K (684) - (5,312) (5,996)
As at 31 March 2022 20229 3A31H 737,105 123,613 113,464 974,182

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Bt 75 2 T & s

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEKREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EMAZRE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKRE)
(viij) ~ Credit risk exposure (Continueq) wiip) (5EEE (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BILEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1EER  FoBR  FIER wst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET

Balance as at 31 March 2020 7202043 31 H

2R 700,807 96,790 184,513 982,110
New loans originated EER 458,442 5,921 23,875 488,238
Loans recovered or repaid FRWEILERER
during the year (427,965) (69,802) (113,956) (611,723)
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 55 1 BEEX 85 A 28 2 f& B (38,773) 38,773 = =
Transfers from Stage 1to Stage 3 55 1 F&ER 88 A 25 3F& E: (16,971) - 16,971 =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 55 2 BEER 88 A 55 1 [ Y 11,275 (11,275) = =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 S 2 [EBR A E 3B - (2,152) 2,152 -
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 1 58 3 B8 A 55 1 FEEL 175 = (175) =
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 2 58 3 B 88 A 58 2 X B, - 1,162 (1,162) =
Total transfers between stages P& ER 2 f#5 #4258 (44,294) 26,508 17,786 =
Loans receivable directly written-off B 12 #f #4 & U & ¢ (118) = (2,553) (2,671)
As at 31 March 2021 202143 A31H 686,872 59,417 109,665 855,954
BERGEEEERARA
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1

—— 132

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(viii) - Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Movements in ECL allowance on loans and interest

receivables:

3 HEREKRER®E)
3.1 B¥RBERE)
(b) EERBE)
(vii) (SE/mE (&)
JE Ut & 3k R R BB AT 1B
BlRARHEZE

Year ended 31 March 2022
HZ2022F3A31 HILFE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE  Eo2RBE  EIRE #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERE  FER  FER FTEX

Balance as at 31 March 2021

New loans originated

Loans recovered or repaid during

the year

Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3

Total transfers between stages

Impact on year end ECL exposure

Movement within same stage due
to change in credit risk

M20214F3A31H
2 i

HEER
FRAREREZEN

F1RRBAS 2ER
F1RRBAS KR

BBz MR AR

HEKBEHERERX
Rz &&

RiEERBREEM I
F—RERNZ &

As at 31 March 2022

202253 A31H

4,425 327 16,668 21,420
2,560 156 918 3,634
(1,831) (327) (737) (2,895)
(1,911) 1,911 - -
(68) - 68 =
(1,979) 1,911 68 -
- (120) (68) (188)
(308) 108 166 (34)
2,867 2,055 17,015 21,937

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEKREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EMAZRE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKRE)
(vii)  Credit risk exposure (Continued) wiii) 15 E/E B ()

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BILEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1EER  FoBR  FIER wst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET

Balance as at 31 March 2020 7202043 31 H

2R 1,815 949 23,721 26,485
New loans originated EER 3,191 328 220 3,739
Loans recovered or repaid during IR @l 3k (2 B B
the year (1,323) 5) (2,236) (3,564)
Transfers from Stage 110 Stage 2 55 1 B8 A 25 2 5 B, (267) 267 - -
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 55 1 & B 88 A 58 3 P& B, (29) = 29 =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 58 2 (& B8 A 55 1 FEEL 224 (224) = =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 55 2 & EX 88 A 55 3 P& B; - (721) 721 -
Total transfers between stages M ER 2 Rl 8 4850 (72) 678) 750
Impact on year end ECL exposure ¥4 FEzHE &%
R v 2 966 (267) (61) 638
Movement within same stage due  [F1E B 5 & &) 5| &
to change in credit risk R—PEER A & (152) - (5,726) (5,878)
As at 31 March 2021 M20214F3 A31H 4,425 327 16,668 21,420
BERGEEEERARA
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1

—— 134

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(ix)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off loans and interest receivables,
in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group
may write-off loans and interest receivables that are
still subject to enforcement activities. The amounts
written-off during the year ended 31 March 2022
was HK$5,996,000 (2021: HK$2,671,000). The
Group still seeks to recover amounts it is legally
owed in full, but which have been written-off due to

no reasonable expectation of full recovery.

(x)  Concentration risk

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 8% (2021: 10%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2022. They
accounted for approximately 8% (2021: 9%) of the
gross loans receivable balances as at 31 March

2022.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash flow
forecasting is performed by management. The Group
monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom
on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times
so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing
facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal financial position ratio targets and,

if applicable external regulatory or legal requirements.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HUHRBMEE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EBAEZRE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () "BELEAKRE)
The Group’s primary cash requirements, apart from BRAaZEREERIN KNEE
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank ZEIBREERAIRITTREM
and other borrowings, bonds, an amount due to a fellow BRER  EF  EN—HA
subsidiary and operating expenses. AWMBARIREREERX °
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities THREBBERESHAKREZTEHE
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining BAZFHGBERE S AEE 2
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual cHEEEEBEBARED
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the DT e KAFTIHBESREAEEL
contractual undiscounted cash flows. RURRERE -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year: 16R -
Other payables and accruals H RN IE R ERTE A 6,198 4,623
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JREA~F — i [R] < B B8 2 A1 RRIR 109,740 128,840
Bank and other borrowings RIT R HAMER 292,875 177,058
Bonds and interest payables BHxMERTE 23,681 5,769
432,494 316,290
Two to five years: 2ESF :
Other borrowings HMER 150 -
Bonds &5 - 101,581
150 101,581
Over five years: S5 E
Other borrowings HMER 796 =
BERGEEEERARA
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

—— 136

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns to the shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank and other
borrowings’, ‘bonds’ and ‘amount due to a fellow subsidiary’ as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group’s strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratio
and net cash position of the Group as at 31 March 2022 are as
follows:

3
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MBEREEE)

3.2

BR A B 1

AEBEEERAZBRAREARE
BsaEge  tmARRRERD
WY SEMTOERHEANE - AR
M FT R AR AE DAUR R AR AN X
o

REFHHERARE  NEEX
FHEINTFREZRS - MERR
RERA  BITHRIEEEEN
ARETS

AEBENEEARBH EAREEEDR
BEAR o 3z bt RIRE TS F R AR AR
BETUE - EXFHEAERE
HRERAVBRIRANMTZ
[RITREAMBGR] - [EH] R ERM
—BREMBRARZADREE R
REEEY BRABEAZRAUE
MAKRARZ R e ~NEE
ZRBMER TR REER 2022 F
SABIHZEAEB B ERES MK
SUFEEMAT -

2022 2021

2022 5 2021 £

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

BT FHET FHT

Bank and other borrowings RIT R HAER 29 293,790 177,058
Bonds &% 30 22,911 100,811
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JE — R R B A R FR8 33(b) 109,740 128,840
Less: cash and cash equivalents o B RIREEEY 25 (24,882) (80,023)
Net debt B F5E 401,559 326,686
Total equity T A EE 736,620 676,860
Gearing ratio BEBELX 0.55 0.48

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BMRKEKREEZ)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AR{EMGE
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TREBFEQNFEFTBGERM
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2022 by level of inputs to CEHABEBEL oM AEEHER
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs 2022 3 A31 AR AFEYEKEZ®
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as BTE - BE@WAZBENIZ TS
follows: ARFEEEA=FESR
—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical — F—EExBEEERTEZ
assets or liabilities (level 1). MB(REFHRE) () -
—  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that — BRBERE—RZHEIN B
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that EXBEzEREEZAIE
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level B)skEEGENREB%)@E A
2). B (E=R) -
— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on —  VWIKBERMSEEmE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level EZEESE & A A
3). PATE [ ABIR) (E=4) -
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Level 2 financial assets E_RERMEE
Investment properties REME 113,330 76,350
Financial asset at fair value through BRATEFABRCEMEE
profit or loss 800 800
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the FRE—F BB REBE=H B EZE
year (2021: Nil). A EE(20214F ¢ ) o
BERGEEEERARA
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(@)

(b)

—— 138

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for
loans and interest receivables is an area that requires the
use of complex models and significant assumptions about
future economic conditions and credit behavior. Explanation
of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in
measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 3.1(b), which also sets
out key sensitives of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying
the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

° Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

° Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL; and

° Establishing the number and relation weightings of forward
looking scenarios.

Estimated valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment property is determined annually
by similar transaction on an open market in existing use basis.
In making the judgement, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly on market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period and appropriate capitalisation rates of
rental income.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continueq)

(©)

Income tax

The Group is subject to current income tax. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred income tax
assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
(and laws) and the best knowledge of profit projections of the
Group for coming years during which the deferred income tax
assets are expected to be utilised. In assessing the amount of
deferred income tax assets that need to be recognised, the
Group considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that the Group
estimates of projected future taxable income and benefits from
available tax strategies are changed, or changes in current tax
regulations are enacted that would impact the timing or extent of
the Group’s ability to utilise the tax benefits of net operating loss
carried forward in the future, adjustments to the recorded amount
of net deferred income tax assets and income tax expense
would need to be made. In addition, management will revisit the
assumptions and profit projections at each balance sheet date.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee which comprises the executive directors and
the chief executive officer of the Group. The management committee
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The management committee has determined
the operating segments based on these reports.

The management committee has determined that the Group is
organised into two main operating segments: (i) Property mortgage
loans and (ii) Personal loans. The management committee measures
the performance of the segments based on their respective segment
results. The segment results derived from profit/loss before taxation,
excluding unallocated income/(expenses). Unallocated income/
(expenses) mainly comprise of corporate income net off with corporate
expenses including salary and other administrative expenses which are
not attributable to particular reportable segment.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalent and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets which are managed on a
group basis. Segment liabilities exclude income tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities which are managed on
a group basis.

There were no sales between the operating segments in the years
ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets were
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31

March 2022 and 2021.

All of the Group’s operating segments operate solely in Hong Kong,
and accordingly geographical segment information is not presented.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
A7 1 _JL TN NEEEE =
B 75 s 3% P seangll =
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEIER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BZE2022F3A31 ALFE
Property Personal
mortgage loans loans Unallocated Total
NERBER MAER RO E #@gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FEx FEx FEx
Revenue from external customers 2K B 9MBRF 2 Wzs 102,165 51,323 = 153,488
Other income H AU A 148 1 1,245 1,394
Fair value gains on revaluation ~ EEHRENEZ AFE
of investment properties Iz - - 8,980 8,980
Provision for impairment and R EFURBERE R
write-off of loans receivable, net #5558 (3,825) (2,688) - (6,513)
Administrative expenses THAX (29,964) (16,525) (6,571) (53,060)
Operating profit gyl 68,524 32,111 3,654 104,289
Finance costs BMEKAE (14,380) (92 (6,637) (21,109)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BT B ATER,/(E518) 54,144 32,019 (2,989) 83,180
Income tax expense FTERiFAX (6,656) (4,590) (1,384) (12,630)
Profit/(loss) and total RRAEBAELFE
comprehensive income/(loss) wH (BB R2E
for the year attributable to WA/ (B18) B8
owners of the Company 47,488 27,429 (4,367) 70,550
As at 31 March 2022 M2022% 3 A31H
Property Personal
mortgage loans loans Unallocated Total
NERBER MAER RO E @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Segment assets DEEE 671,713 322,709 182,653 1,177,075
Segment liabilities DEHBE (368,336) (10,836) (61,283) (440,455)
Other information: H gk
Depreciation expense FERS (648) (423) (1,939) (3,010)
Reversal of/(provision for) HERE S (BE)
impairment:
— Stage 1 —F1BE 1,900 (343) - 1,557
- Stage 2 —F 2B (1,588) (140) - (1,728)
—Stage 3 —F3RE 1,103 (1,449) - (346)
Loans and interest receivables i 3 8 U & 2 R KIS
written-off (5,239) (757) - (5,996)
EAEERMARAT
2022 £ 3R 1 4 1 T
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SIERE)

—— 142

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BZE2021 331 HILEE

Property Personal
mortgage loans loans Unallocated Total
MERIBER FLAER AHHC st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHET FHET
Revenue from external customers R B 9MIEE P 2 Wizs 109,735 45,768 = 155,503
Other income HA 2,641 987 274 3,902
Fair value losses on revaluation ~ Ef&RE W E 2 AF(E
of investment properties i - - (990) (990)
Reversal of impairment and B EFURE R E
write-off of loans receivable, net K #3458 2,215 179 - 2,394
Administrative expenses THRAX (29,397) (13,905) (4,036) (47,338)
Operating profit/(loss) mEET (BE) 85,194 33,029 4,752) 113,471
Finance costs BERA (18,361) = (7,315) (25,676)
Profit/(loss) before income tax ~ BRATIS B AT/ (E518) 66,833 33,029 (12,067) 87,795
Income tax expense FTEHAX (9,441) (3,809) (1,327) (14,577)
Profit/(loss) and total KRAEBANELFE
comprehensive income/(loss) wH (BR) ke2mE
for the year attributable to WA/ (F518) asE
owners of the Company 57,392 29,220 (13,394) 73,218
As at 31 March 2021 M2021F3HA31H
Property Personal
mortgage loans loans Unallocated Total
MERIBER UN=EA RO st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FET
Segment assets DEEE 755,857 201,940 144,194 1,101,991
Segment liabilities DEBE (307,643) (6,009) (111,479 (425,131)
Other information: Hib &R -
Depreciation expense FERZ (562) (511) (1,941) (3,014)
(Provision for)/reversal 7 &)/ #E
of impairment:
- Stage 1 —F1BE (2,823) 213 - (2,610)
- Stage 2 —F2RE 223 399 - 622
— Stage 3 —F 3R 7,368 (315) = 7,053
Loans and interest receivables iS5 E U E TN R F &
written-off (2,553) (118) - (2,671)
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6 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6
Revenue represents the interest income earned from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong. Revenue and other income recognised during the year are

e 2 DA B At U A R W z8
WaEEBEBRUEMERBERRMAE
R MEXEBPTREZ FBWA - RER
R Was A REAMMWAIT

as follows:
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHT
Revenue Was
Interest income - property mortgage loans ~ F| B A — ¥ EIZBER 102,165 109,735
Interest income - personal loans FBIWA —FLAER 51,323 45,768
Total revenue U 153,488 155,503
Other income HaA -
Rental income e WA 1,314 343
Management service fee income EERBERA 74 1,742
Sundry income FIBUA 6 8
Government grant BB - 1,809
Total other income H U A 4258 1,394 3,902
EREEEEERAA

2022 4 R 1 43 T
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7 PROVISION FOR/(REVERSAL OF) IMPAIRMENT AND 7
WRITE-OFF OF LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

EWERRERE (BE) XK
R

Year ended 31 March 2022
BZE2022F3A31 HLLEE

Lifetime
expected Lifetime
12 months credit loss expected
expected not credit credit loss
credit loss impaired credit impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEEEHE HREERE
1218 A &t ZEHEH ZEHE
FERX% FERX% FERX
(F1BR) (F2RR) (B 3MER) #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FTEx TER FTERT
(Reversal of)/provision EWEFCREEE),/
for impairment on B
loans receivable (1,557) 1,728 346 517
Write-off of loans receivable WiE R E R 684 - 5,312 5,996
(873) 1,728 5,658 6,513
Year ended 31 March 2021
BE2021F3A AILEE
Lifetime
expected Lifetime
12 months credit loss  expected credit
expected not credit loss credit
credit loss impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TEEERHE HREERE
1218 A fast 2R ZE
(5-%=PS (5-%=PS =EBX
(FE1RE) (F2FER) (E3ER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTAET FAT
Provision for/(reversal of) A E TR E RS,
impairment on loans receivable  (#[al) 2,610 (622) (7,053) (5,065)
Write-off of loans receivable MM E R 118 - 2,553 2,671
2,728 (622) (4,500 (2,394)
Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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8  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 8 1THEX
2022 2021
2022 % 2021 £
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT S
— audit services — BB 800 800
— non-audit services —EE IR 250 250
Advertising and marketing expenses BEEREHAS 7,005 10,795
Bank charges RITE 627 400
Depreciation of property, Y - BERZENE
plant and equipment 3,010 3,014
Directors’ emoluments = 6,295 6,089
Donations B 888 145
Employee benefit expenses EERAFEX
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TREESEME) 9 19,038 15,985
Legal and professional fees FEREMEEER 4,425 3,107
Referral fees HI & 1,963 1,352
Stamp duty on acquisition of W B 2 ENTERR
investment properties 2,200 -
Transportation expenses Bk 781 435
Valuation and search fee HEREMER 1,067 590
Other expenses HEix 4,711 4,376
53,060 47,338
BERGEEEERARA
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(@

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15

BERAAX(TEEESEHE)

Employee benefit expenses during the year are as (@ FREEREFNEXWT :
follows:
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 £
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Salaries e 16,514 14,281
Discretionary bonuses EIETEAL 1,717 1,018
Pension costs - defined contribution BRERA - FEHRK
plans (Note) BEICED) 588 496
Other benefits E A 219 190
19,038 15,985
Note: Bz
The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF scheme”) AEBREEBCREE AR LT EEH )2 Eg
in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong. HMAELE([RESHE]) - REBELS
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees in Hong Kong 2T EAETIREEERBBREEREK
are each required to contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income with a ceiling AZ5% (8RB LR AE1,600/8T)MEiES:tEl
of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF scheme. The only obligation of the Group with H o ERESHER  KEBzE—FF AR
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme. SHEER B H - BEDRUER A BIER D
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year. RREBEN Z {5k o
Five highest paid individuals (b) EEESHFAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group included 3 directors for the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: 3), whose emoluments are reflected in Note 10. The
emoluments payable to the remaining 2 individuals for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (2021: 2), are as follows:

H E2022F3A31HIEFE &K
SERZ&ESHFATERIEIA (2021
F 3B)EE wEHeERBR
B 5E10 - & £202243 A31 8 I
T ENBT28/(2021F : 24)

BRI ATZHEmT
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FAT
Salaries e 2,195 2,102
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 497 444
Pension costs - defined contribution plans iRRE A 4 — F € HFGTE 36 36
2,728 2,582

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals Continueqd)

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2021: 2) highest paid

individuals fell within the following band:

gl

9 EEFTAMX(TEREEME)
(&)
(b) EBEBESHFALE)
BT 2%(20214%F : 22 ) BEEH AT
IS BENT

Number of individuals

A
2022 2021
2022 20214
Emolument band < #5 [E
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 # 75 — 2,000,000 # 7T 2 2

10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS

(@)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary

undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2022:

10 EEFARFE
(a) EEM2
BESZHeFIIMT ¢

HE2022F3 31 BILFEEMIES
BEAARRRSEK BRI ERKIR
HEARS 2 BB

Employer’s
Allowances  contribution
and benefits  to the MPF

Fees Salaries Bonuses in kind (Note) Scheme Total
BES
REREY -4
e e AL B Bt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Koung Nam BtELE - 1,610 398 420 2 2,430
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam ~ BR¥ B % £ - 1,610 398 840 18 2,866
Mr. Tse Pui To AEBEEE - 1,416 351 - 18 1,785
Independent non-executive BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Chan SiuWing Raymond BRIk &8 564 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry PNy 198 - - - - 198
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong RESELE 138 - - - - 138
474 4,636 1,147 1,260 38 7,555
BERGEEEERARA
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10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

—— 148

10 EEFANRAEZ)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ ES=EME#)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s HE2021FE3831BI-FEBMES
services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary BEFAEARRRENEBE R EBIR
undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2021: HEARS 2 B ERBE -
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
and benefits ~ to the MPF
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind (Note) Scheme Total
REE
ZHREY itElz
e e A BRI BEHR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT  TER  TER  TER  TER  TER
Executive directors HiTEs
Mr. Chan Koung Nam BtmELE - 1,548 383 70 18 2,019
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam ~ BR}%B %4 - 1,548 383 840 18 2,789
Mr. Tse Pui To HEEEE - 1,362 387 - 18 1,717
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chan SiuWing Raymond BRIk &8 54 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry N7y 198 - - - = 198
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REELE 138 - - - - 138
474 4,458 1,103 910 54 6,999
Note: Bz
The allowances and benefits in kind represents the rental of residential properties UL EMENERANEEEEARLELLER
owned by the Group and used by Mr. Chan Koung Nam of HK$420,000 and Mr. Chan B BEEFERZEEME 2RSS D R420,000
Kwong Yin William of HK$840,000 (2021: Mr. Chan Koung Nam of HK$70,000 and 7 7T }2840,00078 7L(2021 % : B ¥ @ %k &
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam of HK$840,000). 70,000 77T PR . B 4% 4 840,000 L) ©
Directors’ retirement benefits and termination (b) EE=EMNEEBFFR

benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BEEENAFEAKIEK R
ERAE: f] 3R K 13 1) 2K B B 48 1 (2021
FE) -



NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
175 o B et

10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

11

(©)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
director’s services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodied corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 33, no significant transactions,
arrangements or contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2021: Nil).

FINANCE COSTS

10 EEFANRAEZ)

()

(d)

()

REERZAE=ZSTRH 2K
&

B E2022F3A3MAIEFE . I
BEEEEREME=FRERERE
HE =T EE A (E(2021 F
') o

FRNESE  ZTZREESES
THENBRREARZESEH
BErERASHAZER &
ERREMRSER
MEEHENES XRSESEH
ZENERBREZEEETEREL
BERAGXACED EBIRE
22 5 (2021 F : &) °

EENRS  THIEHNZE
KER

BRETESSATIRFEE SN - BEFIRK
RERFEMER KRR WEFTL
FREASEXEBEBFBEARAAE
EREFHEEEAE=(ERER
KEBEICEARS RHHED
(20214 : 48) o

11 MERAK

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

Interest on amount due to a fellow FEfT— 8B R B A FFE
subsidiary (Note 33(a)) F B (F7E33(a)) 6,279 5,926
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZF B 292 385
Interest on secured bank borrowings HIRBIRITIERFE 6,817 10,186
Interest and related expenses on bonds BEHZFBE R 6,262 7,147
Interest on other borrowings H b ERF B 1,459 2,032
Total finance costs BbE AN 4258 21,109 25,676

EBGEEEEERL
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12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021
have been provided for the rate of 8.25% for the first HK$2,000,000
estimated assessable profits and 16.5% for estimated assessable
profits above HK$2,000,000 for an entity of the Group qualified for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime introduced pursuant to the Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017. For group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, Hong Kong profits tax has

12 BRI

RIE2017 FEFHUEET) (B 7 HRMEHIE R
SIAMBRBIFFHBEE - BE2022F &
2021F3AB31ALFE fEREEE
88 2 & 2,000,000 8 7T 51 P& 2R B % F1) 1%
8.25% &t 12 & & K| 15 B £ 4% - 2,000,000
T LA | 2 (R FE R B R 12 16.5% 7T 1R
EREFSTRE - BRTEMAHIFEH

been provided for at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income represents:

MERERZEEERME -
BT 16.5% sHZ B -

BAEMBHNA

REAEHRARMBZAEHAXESR

15

2022 2021
2022 % 2021 £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Hong Kong profits tax BEBNEH
— Current year —REE 12,943 14,504
— Qver-provision in prior years —BEFEHRERE (60) (235)
Deferred income tax EREFTIS B (253) 308
12,630 14,577

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

AEBRAEUAENEE ZHAEE R

theoretical amount that would arise as follows: SHEEEBNOT ¢
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax R P15 80 A1 4 A 83,180 87,795

Calculated at Hong Kong profits BEBNEHRMRE16.5%E

tax rate of 16.5% 13,725 14,486
Tax concession HBESR (165) (165)
Income not subject to taxation BARBIA (1,482) (333)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes N A 1% 5 2 612 930
Tax loss recognised BRI IAEE = (106)
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBREEE (60) (235)
Income tax expense SR> 12,630 14,577

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) BEREXEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FRERENZAEARXNABBARAA
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$70,550,000 T A A FE(S %5 A 70,550,000 7T
(2021: HK$73,218,000) by the weighted average number of (20214 : 73,218,000 7T ) B LA &
415,000,000 (2021: 415,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during F2022F 3 A3 HIEFEEBITE
the year ended 31 March 2022. AR 2 H0#E F ¥ 415,000,000 A%

(2021 £ : 415,000,000 f%) °

2022 2021
2022 2021 £
Profit attributable to owners of RAREB ABIEREF(FHT)
the Company (HK$’000) 70,550 73,218
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Ftat & SR EARF 2 B#1T
in issue for basic earmnings per share (‘000) @M%~ MNAEFHE(F ) 415,000 415,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARZF EWL) 17.0 17.6
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRBHFEF
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, diluted earnings per share 2022 F 20213 A31H R
presented is the same as the basic earnings per share as there WEBITEIN BEEHEE B - W
was no potentially diluted ordinary share outstanding. FE5SKREEREFHBFREREF
R e
14 DIVIDENDS 14 RE
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 of HK1.3 AATFERERRRBEFASTREE
cents per share, totalling HK$5,395,000, is scheduled to be declared 20223 AG1HIEFE ZRBKEEFR
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. These 1.3l - 54£45,395,000/8 7T ° L5547
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. SRR E R ZBEMEKE -
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Interim dividend paid of HK$1.3 cents B EHRE G 1.3
(2021: HK$1.3 cents) per share (2021 4F : 1.37l) 5,395 5,395
Proposed final dividend of HK$1.3 cents BEARHRE TR 1.3
(2021: HK$1.3 cents) per share (20214 : 1.37%10L) 5,395 5,395
10,790 10,790
BERGEEEERARA
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15 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 15 HSZEBRERERZME

FLOWS
(@) Cash generated from operations (a) REMEBRE
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FET FHET
Profit before income tax B PS T5 BiD4 A 83,180 87,795
Adjustments for: RTHESEED AR
Depreciation e 16 3,010 3,014
Interest expenses FEFZ 11 21,109 25,676
Fair value (gains)/losses HEREME 2 ATFE
on revaluation of (W), 18
investment properties 17 (8,980) 990
Provision for/(reversal of) R E FOR BT E
impairment and write-off of Bt () R e
loans receivable, net R 6,513 (2,394)
Changes in working capital: EEAEE -
Loans receivable FEUER (92,972) 120,626
Interest receivables FEU I B (4,966) 3,813
Other assets Hih&E = 1,064
Prepayments, deposits and TEfRIE - ke R E
other receivables b [ W 3R T8 (155) 15,483
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMERFIA 1,777 1,456
Cash generated from operations KEMSRS 8,516 257,513

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
—— 152
ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
175 o B et

15 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 15 HGABEHERIME 2)

FLOWS (Continued)
(b)  This section sets out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) ZREREHIEE 2022 F K% 2021 3 A
financing activities for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. BMELEEREETHFELARBEY
HER o
Amount due Bank
to a fellow Dividend and other
subsidiary payable Bond borrowings Total
FEf
—BRZ
MEAR RITR
IE EARE &% HER et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
At 1 April 2020 20204 A1H 126,246 - 99,513 323,203 548,962
Non cash - dividend declared JEIRE —EERKE - 10,790 - - 10,790
Non cash - interest cost FERE —FBHKA - - 1,298 = 1,298
Cash flow BeRE 2,594 (10,790) - (146,145) (154,341)
At 31 March 2021 and 20213 A31 B R
1 April 2021 20214 A1 H 128,840 - 100,811 177,058 406,709
Non cash - dividend declared 3ER & — 2T RS - 10,790 - - 10,790
Non cash - interest cost FEE —F KA - - 1,100 = 1,100
Cash flow BehE (19,100) (10,790) (79,0000 116,732 7,842
At 31 March 2022 MR2022%F3A31H 109,740 - 22,911 293,790 426,441

EREEEEERAA
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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16 ¥%X  BEKRRE

Land and Office Furniture Leasehold Motor
buildings equipment  and fixtures improvements vehicles Total
THRET BORE GRAREE BEWERE RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL THBL TEL TAL TAT FHL
At 31 March 2020 1202063 A31H
Cost KA 90,326 2,681 1,889 3,964 615 99,475
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (16,498) (1,725) (1,764) (3,887) 461) (24,335)
Net book amount BEFE 73,828 956 125 77 154 75,140
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ2021%F3A318
ILEE
Opening net book amount FEREE 73,828 956 125 77 154 75,140
Additions NE = 1,012 5 = 962 1,979
Depreciation bl (1,938) (635) (91) (77) 273 (3,014)
Closing net book amount FRERTE 71,890 1,333 39 - 843 74,105
At 31 March 2021 1202163 A31H
Cost KA 90,326 3,693 1,8%4 3,964 1,577 101,454
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (18,436) (2,360) (1,855) (3,964) (734) (27,349)
Net book amount FEFE 71,890 1,333 39 = 843 74,105
Year ended 31 March 2022 HZ2022%F3A318
ILEFE
Opening net book amount FNEETAE 71,890 1,333 39 - 843 74,105
Additions RE - 174 126 - 828 1,128
Depreciation bl (1,938) (658) (36) - (378) (3,010)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 69,952 849 129 - 1,293 72,223
At 31 March 2022 1202263310
Cost KA 90,326 3,867 2,020 3,964 2,405 102,582
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (20,374) (3,018) (1,891) (3,964) (1,112) (30,359)
Net book amount REFEE 69,952 849 129 - 1,293 72,223
At 31 March 2022, the Group’s land and buildings with net book value R2022F3A31H ' AEBEE®FEDN
of approximately HK$69,952,000 (2021: HK$71,890,000) were pledged /69,952,000 7T.(2021 £ : 71,890,000
to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to two subsidiaries of the BIT) 2 T REFOER T —RRITIES
Company (Note 29(ii)). AR RIFET MM B A R ERIRITERZ
AR (MFE29i) -
Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17 REYE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

At beginning of year REF] 76,350 77,340
Additions nE 28,000 -
Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation EHEAFEKRE(BE) 8,980 (990)
At end of the year S 113,330 76,350

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has acquired the mix
of commercial and residential property. See Note 23 for details of the
acquisition.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligation for future repairs and maintenance (2021: Nil). At 31 March
2022 and 2021, the investment properties of the Group were pledged
to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to a subsidiary of the
Company (Note 29(i)).

As at 31 March 2022, independent valuations of the Group’s
investment properties were performed by the independent professional
valuers, Roma Appraisals Limited and Prudential Surveyors (Hong
Kong) Limited (2021: performed by Roma Appraisals Limited), who
hold recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment properties
valued. The valuation determines the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. The fair value losses are
included in “Fair value losses on revaluation of investment properties” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The recurring fair value measurements for investment properties are
included in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during either
of the years.

HE-T-_—_F=—A=+—HLFE" K
SEEREREMAYVE - WEFBHE2
BAFTZE23 o

H2022F3 A31H  REEIWEH &K
RUiE RIRE 2 R BEHD T HEH (2021
F ) o PR2022F 2021 F3 A31H -
AEBZREMECER T —BRITES
ARRIET—HNBARERETERZ
AR (MI7E29()) ©

AEEREMERBYESEGEMESH
BEHAERARMARITEEERAFR
2022 3 A 31 B#EITHE(AE (2021 F -
MESEBRTHERAGHTT) AR
BEBRUBEER  WEBEBATE
BEMEMNB R B2 IMLER - HEE
TEREWMER 2022 F %2021 F3 A31H
ZAYE - ATFEBEFAGEGEZEKRA
RZIEERENMEZ AFEBIEIAN -

KREMEZEEUERFEABIFAE R
RPEZFR - AEBZBRBSREMHHIF
MEBMERERER  BAXTESR
MzBAREL - REZMFAR - F—&
F_MRF=RELEHE LS -

EREREMARAR
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s finance department includes personnel who review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. The results are reported directly to the Financial Controller
and the Audit Committee (“AC”). Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuer at least once
every six months.

At each financial reporting date, the finance department verifies all
major inputs to the independent valuation report, assess property
valuations movements when compared to prior year valuation reports,
and holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties was determined by using the
sale comparison method approach (Level 2 approach). Sales price of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square foot.

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries of the Group:

17

18

REWR(#)
AEBBEE 2 A BRBB L (A ELE
BREMETHE - FRGEREEKAUB
RENECZZBER([EREETER-
MBHRE BERZBSRMGEEMRIEN
EARE—R  WwbHERFRER -

REMBREAE PEHREBIGE
BREARFEIBRABE  BEFHER
SHBAFEMERGEEZES  WEFT
HERA e

HETE
REMEZHEDERAEELER(FE =
RELEE)EE - RE2ER(PINYEER
RIZEEFBRMOTLEYEZEE - 1L
HETEZRERBABBEREYHIRZ
B1g -

i 8 2 =]
AT RASEZ HBARIX :

Place of Principal activities and Particulars of Percentage of
Name incorporation place of operation issued share capital interest held
£ A B AL 3t 2 TEXBREERH ERITREFE iigsE S =l
2022 2021
2022F 20215
Directly owned:
EEEE:
HKF Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1 each
HKF Overseas Limited EBRAES REBREER 10,000 i B R EE
1ETZEBR
HKF BVI Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 100 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1 each
HKF BVI Limited EBERHS REBREER 100 Bk EE
1ETZERR

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

18 FMIEQE (&)

gl

Principal activities

Place of and place Particulars of Percentage of
Name incorporation  of operation issued share capital interest held
£ ARG FTEERREEDE ERITREFE iigsy S =Rl d
2022 2021
20225 20214
Indirectly owned:
RS
Asia Ford Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
BEREERATF BB REBVERRELEKR 10,000 A% & @Ak
Charterfame Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
HEREBRRF BB REBVERREEKR 10,000 A% & i@ A%
Hong Kong Finance Hong Kong Money lending business of 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
(Personal Loan) Limited providing personal loans
in Hong Kong
ERGEFRAERERATF BB REBRELAER 1REBR
ZHEES
Hong Kong Finance Express Limited Hong Kong Inactive 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
BREEREBERAA BB Emex 1REBR
Hong Kong Finance Hong Kong Money lending business of 100,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited providing properly mortgage
loans in Hong Kong
EREEMBAERRR e REBREMERIBER 100,000,000 % & @K
ZHEER
Max Art Limited Hong Kong Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
HEERAF EE Lmex 10,000 fix & A%
Hong Kong Promise Finance Limited Hong Kong Inactive 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
BEFBAERATF BB Emex 1REBR
Oceanic Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
BERR AT BB REBMERELZR 1REBR
Standard Finance Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
BREFBAR A BB REBMERELZR 2k E @R
ERCEEEERLA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 BRERIESZERMTAE
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHT
Financial assets at amortised cost BHERATECERMEE
Loans receivable FEYE K 930,469 817,553
Interest receivables W FI B 21,776 16,981
Repossessed assets W B & 2 7,248 33,557
Deposits and other receivables Re REMERIE 1,254 809
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY 24,882 80,023
985,629 948,923
Financial asset at fair value through BN T ERABR
profit or loss ZERMEE
Unlisted instrument JEEHIA 800 800
986,429 949,723
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEAARTRZ 2 mAaRE
Other payables and accruals E eI ERE A 6,198 4,623
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary & — R B Rt B & Bl kA 109,740 128,840
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R EMIEFK 293,790 177,058
Bonds &5 22,911 100,811
432,639 411,332

20 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITOR 20

BRAVEFABSRZSHMEE

LOSS
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
At beginning and end of the year REFE RFLL 800 800

The financial asset is an unlisted instrument denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and is classified as a non-current asset.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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21 LOANS RECEIVABLE 21 EWER
2022 2021
2022 2021 £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Gross loans receivable - property FEREFBRE - MERBER
mortgage loans 766,074 671,761
Gross loans receivable - personal loans EREZETE -FLAER 186,332 167,212
Total gross loans receivable U E TR 4B %8 952,406 838,973
Less: Provision for impairment A OREEE
Stage 1 EABR (2,867) (4,425)
Stage 2 F2MEE (2,055) (327)
Stage 3 F IR (17,015) (16,668)
Loans receivable, net of provision JEWE T - MR 930,469 817,553
Less: non-current portion o IEREE S (308,660) (264,241)
Current portion mEnEl s 621,809 553,312
The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money lending REBEWREZRRKGAEBIRHYEILS
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in EFERIAERZHMEER - LB T
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying B MEREEEAEERS -
amounts approximate their fair values.
Except for personal loans receivable of HK$186,332,000 (2021: R A#4186,332,00078 7T (2021 4F : 167,212,000
HK$167,212,000) which are unsecured, loans receivable are secured BIT) 2RI A B AN - EWER
by collaterals provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable NE PR Z B REART - 5t 8 AR
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. HEEHT ZETHRAEE -
The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure of loans receivable and the REBREZE2021 F K 202243 A31H
movements on the Group’s impairment of loans receivable for the years ITFEZEKEZZEAKEERR LEKE
ended 31 March 2021 and 2022 are set out in Note 3.1(b)(viii). FORE R Eh kA BT R 3.1 (b)(viii) ©
BERGEEEERARA
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 21 BWER@E)
During the year ended 31 March 2022, loans receivable amounted HE20022F3A31HIEFE BERER
to HK$5,996,000 (2021: HK$2,671,000) had been written-off. These 5,996,000 72021 £F : 2,671,000/ 7T )
relate to customers who are either (i) in financial difficulties; (i) declared B BERESRERS()HEHER
bankruptcy; or (i) deceased and in the opinion of the directors, such (O SMEE: LD ERMESR
loans receivable are uncollectible. AERKOEEEKRER -
A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the reporting EEIHERENREEE  EREZR
periods, based on the maturity date and net of provision, is as follows: SREBAR Z B HIE R AT -
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Current BN EA 621,809 553,312
2-5 years 2FES5F 80,200 61,744
Over 5 years 5F A E 228,460 202,497
930,469 817,553
As at 31 March 2022, certain properties mortgaged to the subsidiary R2022%F3A31H ' BEFHEFFARAA
of the Company for loans granted to its respective customers were MEBARNAEEBEEFESERZYE
pledged to an independent third party to secure bank and other DEWRTBYE=H > EAERBRITRE
borrowings granted (Note 29(ii)). b AE R 2 AR (PR3 29(ii))
INTEREST RECEIVABLES 22 EWFE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
Interest receivables FEUF B 21,776 16,981

The Group’s interest receivables, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying
amounts approximate their fair values.

Except for interest receivables of HK$11,316,000 (2021:
HK$7,100,000) which are unsecured, interest receivables are secured
by collaterals provided by customers and repayable with fixed terms
agreed with the customers.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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23

24

REPOSSESSED ASSETS

The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 March

gl

23 WEEE

R2022F K 2021 E3 A31 HFf %S4

2022 and 2021 are summarised as follows: ExMERERERRSAT
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Repossessed assets — lorry parking spaces W [E1& & — E &8 SR
(2021: a mix of commercial and (20214 - BHIEMAYWE)
residential property) 7,248 33,657

Repossessed assets represent the credit-impaired loans and interest
receivables which the Group has the right to rent or sell the underlying
collateral assets, but does not obtain any ownership and control of
the underlying collateral assets, in order to recover the outstanding
receivables balances. These receivables continue to be measured
at amortised cost less provision for impairment under HKFRS 9,
with reference, to a certain extent, to the fair value of the underlying
collateral assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has successfully
sold and acquired a mix of commercial and residential property
through public auction as investment properties (Note 19). Details of
the transaction are disclosed in the announcement dated 22 October
2021.

No provision for impairment of repossessed assets was made as at
31 March 2022 (2021: Nil). Note 3(b) provides for details of how the
expected credit loss allowance is measured.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24

WEEEEASEERLEX L EHER
HEE(BEYBESHBENEENMAE
Ko A% hil4 ) AU B R (B & e WK IR A B2 BN 2
SERERKREREANE - REFEHE
EREAIFON  RFRWHIRBELRE
WA RBERETE YN —ERELE
SERBERBEENATE -

HEC022F3A31BIEFE A&EEE
EBRAFRMEERREWEK L E R
BrEEMmAWEMIEI9 - XBFZFHEE
BN AEA2021 10 B22 B2 A ©

202243 A31 B3 W0 & ERE
FTHRRE MR (2021 4F - &) - MizES(b)HABTE
SHEEBABREBHERAZFHE -

ANRE REREMERREA

2022 2021
2022 2021 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Prepayments TERTFRIE 774 1,064
Deposits i 235 174
Other receivables H b fE W 5RIE 1,019 635
2,028 1,873

BERGEEEERARA

2022 F ¥} 161




NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
BRI 75 o B et

=
L]
Bt =

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24 BEHNFE- -BRERHEMEWRTIE

(Continued) (#&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, consideration NEBZ7ENTIE - ERRE - B KE
receivable, deposits and other receivables approximate their fair values. HEWFIE Z EEmERE AN ERE -
The Group’s prepayments, consideration receivable, deposits and AREEBZENMNRE  BRAE ReRkE
other receivables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. b JE W 2R TE DA T EHE o
All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired. B RS N H b fE W FkTE Y5 7k 8 BR I 4 R
18 o
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERBELEEY
2022 2021
2022 F 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash at bank and maximum exposure RITARE REXNEER
to credit risk 24,882 80,023
The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B MBREEBWABTEE -
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 R
Number of shares Share capital
ROHE B
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 F 20214 2022 & 20214
’000 shares '000 shares HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T FTHET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRE{E0.01 %t
ZER
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of the year RETRFRK 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At beginning and end of the year ~ REXI REL 415,000 415,000 4,150 4,150
Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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27 RESERVES 27 f#fE
The amount of the Group’s reserve and the movements therein for the REBRNAKERAFEZRERAEEETRE
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement 2IRZEGREMBERREIC0BEZESE
of changes in equity on page 100 to these consolidated financial EREHRK -
statements.
The Group’s capital reserve represents the excess of the nominal REB ZERFEBFEEREARARRD £
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group B BiEEREAKNEZNBARIKRGD Z
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the EEBE AN T ZETABRE g mn 2 &
nominal value of the Company’s share issued in exchange therefore. HEEZEEE -
28 OTHER PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS 28 HittfENRERESER
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Other payables and accrued charges HAb A S R BT RS 8,316 5,772
Rental deposits received Bl eEe 401 87
Interest payable on bonds BHZEAFIBE 44 1,147
8,761 7,006
The Group’s other payables and accruals are denominated in Hong REB 7 M EMNTIEREGTER AT
Kong dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. E - mEmEHEAEAFERES -
29 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29 RITRHAMER
Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows: RITRHMERDTAT
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Bank loans RITER 224,844 152,058
Other borrowings HibER 68,946 25,000
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMIE B 293,790 177,058
Less: non-current portion B IR S (915) =
Current portion mENER D 292,875 177,058
BERGEEEERARA
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29

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

The weighted average effective interest rate on bank loans and bank
overdrafts during the year ended 31 March 2022 was 4.5% (2021:
5.3%) per annum.

Other borrowings of HK$68,946,000 (2021: HK$25,000,000) are
unsecured and repayable within one to ten years. The weighted
average effective interest rate on other borrowings during the year
ended 31 March 2022 was 4.5% (2021: 5.1%) per annum.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, all bank and other borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2022, the bank loans and overdrafts utilised
by the Group amounted to HK$224,844,000 (31 March 2021:
HK$152,058,000). The Group’s unutilised banking facilities as at the
same date amounted to HK$192,647,000 (2021: HK$222,983,000).
These banking facilities were secured by the following:

(i) investment properties held by the Group with a net book value of
to HK$113,330,000 (Note 17) (2021: HK$76,350,000);

(i) land and buildings held by the Group with a net book value of
HK$69,952,000 (Note 16) (2021: HK$71,890,000);

(i) pledge of certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary of the
Company for loans granted to its respective customers. The fair
value of these properties were approximately HK$94,500,000
(2021: HK$237,300,000); and

(iv)  corporate guarantee of the Company.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

29 MITREAMEBIRE)

HZE2022F3A31HIEFEE  RITER
MERTTEX Z NEFHERFFERE4.5%
(20214 : 5.3%) °

##168,946,000 % 7T.(2021 £ : 25,000,000
B2 HEMERABEBEREEAR—Z+
FRNEE BHE2022FE3831BILEE
HEMEROMEFTERFNEE45%
(20214 : 5.1%) °

R 2022 F K 20213 A31H » FrARTT
REMETAETHHE  MEmMEEER
FEEE -

R2022F3A31H  AEBEFEAH 2R
TERNMFE X /224,844,000 JT(2021
F£3F31H :152,058,000/87T) - NEH
REBZREAHRITHE H192,647,000
7 70(2021 4 : 222,983,000/ 78) ° %%
IRITRVE AT SIS IBERIRE -

() AEEATFRBEFEEAS 113,330,000
770 (2021 4F : 76,350,000 7T ) 2
WEME(ME7)

(i)  AEEFFEREFERG9,952,000
77T (2021 4F : 71,890,000 7T ) 2
TH REF(MIFE16)

(i) HFERTFAQAET —HEWEB
AREEREBEREFPERERZ
EHZME - ZEWEZATFE
41 /594,500,000 JL(20214 :
237,300,000 7C) &

(iv) ARRZEER-
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30 BONDS 30 &%
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT FHET
Bonds &% 22,911 100,811
Less: current portion W REER D (22,911) (77,857)
Non-current portion JEMENER S = 22,954

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has balances of Bond | with
amount of HK$23,000,000 (2021: HK$84,000,000), before placing
commission, with coupon rates at 6% (2021: 6%) per annum,
repayable in 7 years from the issue date and the maturity dates ranging
from 31 October 2021 to 27 August 2022.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had balance of Bond Il with
amount of HK$18,000,000, before placing commission, respectively,
with coupon rates at 4.5% per annum, repayable in 7 years from the
respective issue date and the maturity dates ranging from 9 October
2021 to 30 March 2022. Bond Il carried an option by the bondholders
to redeem Bond Il three years after the date of issuance.

The carrying amount of the Bond | is HK$22,911,000 as at 31
March 2022 (2021: Bond | with HK$82,811,000 and Bond II with
HK$18,000,000, respectively, and with aggregate amount of
HK$100,811,000), and approximate their fair values. The fair values are
determined using the expected future payments discounted at effective
interest rates prevailing at the year ended and are within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. The carrying amounts of the Group’s bonds are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

MR2022F3A31H ' AR A A EHEMN
B BZ & 4 € B ) /23,000,000 7% 7T (2021
% : 84,000,000 7)) 2 EH— R B
HE B R E6%(20214F : 6%) 8 M3
THHRZ 7FREE - BHAN F2021
F10A 31 HE2022F8H27H -

M2021F3A318 ' ARRAELE IR
&M< A1) A 18,000,000 T2 EH =
ek EEFEERE45%  BRETEE
B2Z7FANEE " BIEHANF20215F10
AOHZE2022%F3A30H - E5 &
FREAEAEERUNETEHE=FED
BEH= -

MN2022%3A31B &% — 2 K@ E
£22,911,000/ jT(20214F : %5 — &
EH =2 ¥ 5kl A£82811,000% T &
18,000,000/% 7T + #2 % %8 & 100,811,000
Bor)  MEQNTFERSE c ATENFERE
FRIVITEBRFREEIR 2 FEE R KT 5K
BT WBATESHFE=FRHER - K
EEESZEEBENSTHE -

EREEEEERAA
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31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

31

EEFRSH
EHERRIMITHEN K E AR E R
BB EEAREY - BETEHEEY
KR —BiIS R AR - B RTS8 B A
EREETRKY -

BERERBEERBBEZAOT

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Deferred tax assets: EERRIEEE ¢
— To be recovered within 12 months — R 12E ARk E (1,135) (749)
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFIBEAE
- To be settled after more than 12 months ~ — G fB@ 12 @ A 1B 45 3,301 3,168
Deferred tax liabilities, net RIERIE B EFR 2,166 2,419
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: FEIEFTISHIERE o BRBEFHWT ¢
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At beginning of the year REF] 2,419 2,111
(Credited)/charged to in the consolidated MREEEBARGIA), Nk
statement of comprehensive income (253) 308
At end of the year REFL 2,166 2,419

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 31 EEFFER (&)

BEFRSHREERABREAZEZH(RE
BR—BBAVEEEAN 2 BHREH)OT

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Provisions

for collective
impairment of
loans receivable

JEUN B TR EE R
VERIEREY
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2020 20204 A1H (869)
Credited to the consolidated statement of RErEZ2EBARTA
comprehensive income -
At 31 March 2021 2021 £3 A31H (869)
Credited to the consolidated statement of RERE 2EBARKFA
comprehensive income (486)
At 31 March 2022 7202243 5310 (1,355)
Accelerated
tax depreciation
IRFIEYTE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2020 R2020F 4 A1H 2,980
Charged to the consolidated statement of RERE 2 ERARK NG
comprehensive income 308
At 31 March 2021 2021 3 A31H 3,288
Charged to the consolidated statement of RérE 2 EBRA KNG
comprehensive income 233
At 31 March 2022 R20229F 3 A31H 3,521
EBEEEEERATA
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() Operating lease commitments - as lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties to independent
third parties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
The lease terms are within 1 to 5 years (2021: within 1 year).

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of the investment
properties are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
8175 R B

32 AiE

() RKEHERE-(EAHBER
REBERBETRAIHE 2 EERER
FRABUF- S THHEREWE-H
HAENF1FEE5F(2021F 14
A) o

REREVMEZAARELEH
% B RRRERSAFMNT

2022 2021

2022 £ 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT FET

Within 1 year 1FR 2,082 262
Within 2-5 years 2E5FR 1,421 =
3,503 262

(ii) Capital commitment

The Group did not have any significant capital commitment at 31
March 2022 (2021: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried
out between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course
of business during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, and
balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 March 2022
and 2021.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

()

Significant related party transactions

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following
significant transactions were undertaken by the Group with
related parties.

33

gl

BEARS (#)

() EXEBAERS
BRABRESEMBYAREES K
SEEBABITETIEARZANT

2022 2021
2022 2021 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET Fi&T
Interest expense paid to a fellow subsidiary 1 F—EEZRZHE AR 2 F EMX
— Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited —-RKEBEERAB([RBEE])
(“Tin Ching Industrial”) 6,279 5,926

Interest expense on an amount due to a fellow subsidiary was
charged at an weighted average effective interest rate of 5.8%
(2021: 5.8%) per annum.

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

Tin Ching Industrial, a fellow subsidiary, provided the Group
with a loan facility with a limit of HK$200,000,000 (2021:
HK$200,000,000), of which the Group utilised an amount of
HK$109,740,000 (2021: HK$128,840,000) as at 31 March 2022.

The amount was unsecured, interest bearing at an effective
interest rate of 5.8% (2021: 5.8%) per annum on the outstanding
amount, and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
amount due to a fellow subsidiary is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Key management compensation

EBN—HERENBARZKEZFE
ASXEMEFSERFFE58%
(20214 : 5.8%)YZHY »

(b) EN—REREZRKELQAKE
RAEMBARARSEEEMAEER
HEFBE - [R5 A200,000,000
#  s£(2021 4 : 200,000,000%
L) NEEMN2022F3A31HE
&) F E "1 109,740,000/ (2021
£ 1 128,840,000 7T) °

FAEBEERE - RBEHRIZINE
15 BB FF| £5.8% (2021 F ¢
5.8%) 5T B RBRERKIER - B —
MR ZM B R R KB 2 EEENS
JLEHE ©

(c) EEREEEHMN

2022 2021
2022 % 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Salaries and bonuses e MIEA 8,752 8,394
Other benefits HAEF 1,260 840
Pension costs- defined contribution plans BRIRESHA — REH-FKETE 92 108
10,104 9,342

BERGEEEERARA
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Statement of financial position
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37 AQBHBEMRRE

(a) #BIMRRE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Assets &=
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RWBRARZIEE 260,850 260,850
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 260,850 260,850
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from fellow subsidiaries S NG RE 266,854 245 507
Prepayments, deposits, and TERTRIE ~ e RHE A EYEIA
other receivables - 151
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY - 276
Total current assets REBEEAR 266,854 245,934
Total assets EEMEE 527,704 506,784
Equity R
Equity attributable to the owners of AAREE AELRER
the Company
Share capital (&N 4,150 4,150
Reserves {1 376,146 371,760
Total equity ERARE 380,296 375,910
Liabilities &f&
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bonds (6 - 22,954
Total non-current liabilities FRBABEERE - 22954
Current liabilities REBAE
Bonds (EE 22,911 77,857
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMERFIR 84 1,185
Tax payable FEfS IR 97 662
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTBT B A B FIE 123,995 28,216
Bank overdrafts RITEX 321 =
Total current liabilities REBEEE 147,408 107,920
Total liabilities BERE 147,408 130,874
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEE 527,704 506,784
Net current assets REBEEFHE 119,446 138,014
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBAE 380,296 398,864

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continueq)

(b) Reserve movements of the Company

37 FEATMBMRT )

(b) ERFERELE

Share-based

Share capital Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
PYip:)
Hifw
R RE EARfE REBA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THT
Balance at 1 April 2020 W202054 B1 Az &8 103,665 260,829 3,276 367,770
Total comprehensive income FEXHWALRE
for the year - - 14,780 14,780
Transactions with owners BREEAZRS
Dividends relating to 2020 BH2020F 2R & - - (5,395) (5,395)
Dividends relating to 2021 BH2021 F 2R A - - (5,395) (5,395)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R2021 £3 B 31 Az iR 103,665 260,829 7,266 371,760
Representing b
Reserves i 103,665 260,829 1,871 366,365
Proposed final dividend BEREARS - - 5,395 5,395
Balance at 31 March 2021 H2021 £3 B 31 Hz&s 103,665 260,829 7,266 371,760
Balance at 1 April 2021 R2021 4 A1 B &S 103,665 260,829 7,266 371,760
Total comprehensive income FE2EWALR
for the year = = 15,176 15,176
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Dividends relating to 2021 BH2021 F 2R A - - (5,395) (5,395)
Dividends relating to 2022 BH2022F 2R 8 - - (5,395) (5,395)
Balance at 31 March 2022 M202253 31 Hz&s 108,665 260,829 11,652 376,146
Representing ]
Reserves &t 103,665 260,829 6,257 370,751
Proposed final dividend EaAERE - - 5,395 5,395
Balance at 31 March 2022 R20226 3 A 31 Az &tk 103,665 260,829 11,652 376,146
BERGEEEERARA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 i B 755 R 2k P
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34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Reserve movements of the Company (Continuea)

The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s share, over the nominal value of the
Company’s share issued in exchange therefore.

Under Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, a company may
make distributions to its shareholders out of the capital reserves
in certain circumstances.

35 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 30 May 2022, HKF Overseas Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sales and purchase agreement to acquire
50% of the issued share capital (the “Acquisition”) of Shine Joyful
Limited (the “Target”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, at a cash consideration of HK$14,000,000. The principal
asset of the Target comprises certain vessels. Details of the transaction
are disclosed in the announcements dated 30 May 2022 and 2 June
2022. The Acquisition constitutes a post-closing event and therefore,
there is no impact on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
—— 172
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

37

35

KRBT (2)

(b) ARXRRHELE(Z)
EN/NS - N RN ANYNCT )
LR ARRREEEEAKE
ZHWBARIEEFEZ A ERBH
ARRETABRE ERB D 2 EE
LB

BEMSHBARE  ARARE
TR T & A G0 R
B °

REHRBREER

R2022F 58308 ARFZE2EH B
A AIHKF Overseas Limited:] 7 B & #
LB ORBERLAR(TBEEARD
(—EREAEMAIZER AR )BT
BABH50% ((WEBEE]) ReREAR
14,000,000/87C - BERRRIZEEEER
FBETHM RPZFBEBER 202245
B30B K2022F6 2B 2 - WES
BAZEREREE - AW AREEZE2022
FIABN ALLFENGREAVBRREEY
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TEWEIIK

As at 31 March 2022 7202243 A 31 A

gl

Property Use
L/ES A%

Remaining
lease terms

BRI

Percentage of
interest attributable
to our Company
AR ELEZEE DL

1. Unit No. 2 on 7th Floor Godown
Sunray Industrial Centre BE
No. 610 Cha Kwo Ling Road
Kowloon
JUEE
FKREBE6105
AR TZEA D
TE2E

2. Flat E on 10/F of Residential
Block 3 (Orchid Court) x=
New Town Plaza (Phase Ill)

Nos. 2-8 Sha Tin Centre Street
Shatin

New Territories

R

W H

YWHIFE2-85%
T S (F=H51)

SR (ERMAE)

10EE=E

&k Unit No. 6A on 25th Floor Office
Tower Two, Lippo Centre /NS
No. 89 Queensway
Hong Kong
95
B EE 89
NEFRH P
251 B6AE

4, Shop Units A, B1 and B2 on the Ground Floor, Shops
Lot No. 136413 in Demarcation District 6, S
Tai Po, New Territories
AR L 2L 6 FRHER
1364135 EE A « B1 & B2 554

o First Floor, Residential
Lot No. 136413 in Demarcation District 6, =
Tai Po, New Territories

AR KL ELOM 6 5RHER 13641358 —12

Medium term

T+

Medium term
A

Medium term
H HA

Medium term
H HA

Medium term
H HA

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

ERFEKREERLA
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMGHE

RESULTS E4 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2022 20214  2020%F  2019%F 20184

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

FHBxT FHETT FET FHET FHET

Revenue Uz 153,488 155,503 163,614 160,992 132,149
Profit and total comprehensive RABEE AEWG

income for the year attributable FEEMN R

to owners of the Company SEWALLEE 70,550 73,218 55,495 42,164 50,050

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2022%F 20215 F  2020F 20194 20184

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

FHx FHET FET FHET FHET

Total assets BERTE 1,177,075 1,101,991 1,178,320 1,144,796 1,104,612

Total liabilities BEERE 440,455 425,131 563,888 575,069 565,867

Total equity e EE 736,620 676,860 614,432 569,727 538,745
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GLOSSARY s
= iR
Sl T |

In this annual report, unless or otherwise further expressed, the following R AFEHRA » B X E B A HIEI © THH
expressions have the following meanings: ABUTHE

“Articles” or “Articles of Association” the amended and restated articles of association of our Company conditionally

AR k=2 AR A

“Board”
=3

“CG Code”

[{EEIRSFAI]

“Code Provisions”
[ =F B3]

“Company” or “our Company”

[RA]H[ARE

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[PEAR AR 2R

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“ESQ”
[R5 - HERER

LT

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”,

ESNERs S N EAE: A

“HKS”
[T

“HKICPA”
[BEAGFMAE]

“HK Finance”

[BREE

adopted on 4 September 2013, and as amended from time to time
201369 A4 BB GG IRAL L TRFEFT 2 AR RKETT REFEBER
ikl

the board of Directors

Exg

the “Corporate Governance Code” and “Corporate Governance Report” are set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
RN SRR 2 R B TFRD R EE R WE)

the code provisions as set out under the CG Code

EEASTRIFTELZ 57 RIS

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange
EAEESEERAR  —HRRAEHSTMA L2 ABRDET - RGO
RFFER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
B FTRAIRE TR

the director(s) of the Company
RRRIESE

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE e kER

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRB R EKE AR

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEEEEEET

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
VN

Hong Kong Finance Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability with a money lenders licence registered under MLO, which is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EAEEMBERAR  —HREBIMKIZERRA - BHERBEREA
EROIEEM 2 EAR - TRARRREE2ENEB AR

ERFEREERLA
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GLOSSARY
ks

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Listing Date”
[ ETREH]
“Listing Rules”

[ AR Al

“Memorandum” or

“Memorandum of Association”

[RH s BB SR A4
“MLO”
DESEVNESIN

“Model Code”
Ee SN

“SFO”

[ &5 REIE 1561
“Share Option Scheme”
[ &R st 2l ]
“Share(s)”

[ A& ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[R5 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 P |

“Tin Ching Holdings”
[ R&R#ER

“Tin Ching Industrial”
[REBEX]

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
hEARAMBEFBRRITERR

2 October 2013, being the first date when the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange
201310 A2H « BRI REER AT ERE IR Lz B HA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 e 2 E AR Al

the memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to time

RARERT 2 AR RIABERAM

the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEEDIE 163 ECREAGR) - EAERER] - MR ARMT B R

“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHARAIMSE T RAE 2K ETMBITAESETESFR S 2 FREFAD

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
ERENE 571 BCEH KB ED)

A share option scheme adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder of our Company on 4 September 2013
R201346 9 A4 BIRBAARIERME—RR 2 EERBRRMN 2 BARE 2

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RABIRARFREEO0.01 B T2 Bl

the holder(s) of Share(s)
SESZSPN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERHMERA

Tin Ching Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
owned as to 50% by each of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin
William, and a controlling shareholder of our Company

REBERBRAR - —HAREBRAABSTIMAL RG] - AREEEER
Eﬁt%ﬁ%i%%“ﬁm%%ﬁ?& CWRARR R ZERARER

Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and owed as to 100% interest by Tin Ching Holdings
ABEEARQR  —MREEFMERIZAF  ARBEREAR 100% i

a
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